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It is our mission to
become one of the reputable
players in the integrated
interior design services
market in Hong Kong
through our commitment to
exquisite attention to details from design to fit out
to decoration. With our drive and passion, we garner the trust and
appreciation from our customers and provide shareholders with return
on their investment.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
RS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of LC Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 30 September 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the early of 2016, the Hong Kong property market
sentiment turned downward. As a result, the turnover of
the Group decreased by approximately HK$43.5 million
from approximately HK$159.5 million for the year ended
30 September 2015 to approximately HK$116.0 million
for the year ended 30 September 2016. The overall gross
profit decreased by approximately HK$12.6 million from
approximately HK$60.2 million for the year ended 30
September 2015 to approximately HK$47.6 million for the
year ended 30 September 2016. Such decrease was mainly in
line with the overall downward trend of the total turnover.

However, the Group recorded a consolidated net profit
of approximately HK$24.2 million for the year ended 30
September 2016, representing an increase of approximately
HK$3.2 million as compared with consolidated net profit
of approximately HK$21.0 million for the year ended 30
September 2015. The increase in consolidated net profit
during the year end 30 September 2016 was mainly due to
the decrease in one-off initial public offering expenses. The
listing exercise was completed in last financial year and there
were one-off initial public offering expenses of approximately
HK$14.8 million (charged to consolidated statement of
profit and loss and other comprehensive income) during the
year ended 30 September 2015. During the year ended 30
September 2016, no initial public offering expenses were
incurred.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREMwE

PROSPECT

The principal risks and uncertainties of our business are highly
affected by the development and growth in the property
development industry as well as the performance of property
developers, and the demand for our services from the
property developers could be volatile.

It is expected that the uncertainty in Hong Kong property
development industry which is detrimental to the demand
for our services from the property developers. Nevertheless,
for likely future business development, the Group will take
initiatives to prudently seize any opportunities to enhance our
competitiveness so as to alleviate the possible impact from
the uncertainty in Hong Kong property development industry.

APPRECIATION
We would like to thank our committed staff for their

contributions, our customers, business partners and
shareholders for their continued support in the Group.

On behalf of the Board

LEONG Hing Loong Rudoff
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 December 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R e B AT

The Board is pleased to present the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 30 September 2016 (“FY2016”),
together with the comparative figures for the corresponding
year ended 30 September 2015 (“FY2015”).

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group is a one-stop integrated interior design solutions
provider based in Hong Kong. Our integrated interior design
solutions include design, fit out, and decoration. We are
also responsible for the overall project management. Our
customers can choose from one or a combination of our
solutions. The provision of our services to our customers
can be broadly classified into two major types of projects, (i)
design and/or decoration (“DD”) and (i) design, fit out and
decoration (“DFD”).

During the FY2016, the revenue of the Group decreased
by approximately 27.3% to approximately HK$116.0 million
(FY2015: HK$159.5 million) from provision of one-stop
integrated interior design services.

EEEMARIAKHEBEE_FT - FNA
—TRLEFET(ZZ—R"MBRFED Z2FE
i EREBEE-_T-AFNAA=1THILHE
REE([ZZ—AWRFE]) ZHLBETF -
B %5 [E] R

Wy &

AEERUNBAEREHN —UMAKREE

RATERORTT SRR % BPINEAEARS
BORT RBIERG - KERESH - RATA
AEBREEE HMANEPAEERME
F—ERRTRAEAZERRT R - H A
AEPRHEMNRBE AR D AMAEER -
‘“‘Jr&/jzzéﬁfﬁ(?”ﬂr&/jzzéﬁfﬂ)&
()an+ RN Kb ([R5 - RIEREH]) -

R-E—AUHREE AEBEREREME—
R ER A BARA RS 2 Wamm 4 #27.3%
EH116.0BEA L (ZE—RAPHRFE
159.56BE&AT) °

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our Group’s 1218 BRI M IBI B2 D A A E B WA
revenue by type of projects and by geographical locations: WENTEK
FY2016 FY2015
—AMBEE — R RFE
HK$’ 000 % HK$’ 000 %
FHET FAT
DD BHERWEH
People’s Republic of REARHAA
China (the “PRC”) ([ EL) 22,662 19.6% 24,088 15.1%
Hong Kong BB 3,860 3.3% 1,132 0.7%
Singapore s 1,210 1.0% - -
Subtotal Nt 27,732 23.9% 25,220 15.8%
DFD BEt  REREN
PRC H - - 1,680 1.1%
Hong Kong BB 88,289 76.1% 132,627 83.1%
Subtotal Nt 88,289 76.1% 134,307 84.2%
Total #Et 116,021 100.0% 159,527 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI R o B AT

In FY2016, the major customers of the Group were mostly
well established listed property developers based in Hong
Kong. The revenue derived from the DFD projects in Hong
Kong was the key component to the overall revenue, which
amounted to approximately HK$88.3 million for FY2016
(FY2015: HK$132.6 million) representing 76.1% (FY2015:
83.1%) of the overall revenue of the Group for FY2016. The
Hong Kong property market sentiment in 2016 turned amid
the volatility in stock markets, the possibility for increase in
US interest rates and uncertainties in the economic outlook,
resulting in a decline in the number of sizeable DFD projects
in Hong Kong. In FY2015, there were sizeable DFD projects
in Hong Kong with an aggregate turnover of approximately
HK$91.9 million. While in FY2016, there were lesser sizeable
DFD projects in Hong Kong with an aggregate turnover of
approximately HK$35.8 million.

As a result of the Hong Kong property market sentiment
downward turn, the competition in interior design industry
became more keen. This phenomenon was more likely to
occur in the DFD projects in Hong Kong of which the contract
sum was relatively higher and thus had a greater extent for
cut off. In order to avoid any negative financial impact from
competing with market participants for DFD projects in Hong
Kong with too low profit margin, our Group strategically
allocated more manpower and resources towards the DD
projects in Hong Kong which involved fewer subcontract
works and had a stable return to our Group. The revenue
derived from the DD projects in Hong Kong amounted to
approximately HK$3.9 million for FY2016 (FY2015: HK$1.1
million) representing 3.3% (FY2015: 0.7%) of the overall
revenue of the Group for FY2016. Such growth was mainly
driven by sizeable DD projects in Hong Kong with an
aggregate turnover of approximately HK$3.3 million.

The revenue derived from the DD projects in PRC
decreased from approximately HK$24.1 million in FY2015
to approximately HK$22.7 million in FY2016. There was a
recurring trend for the PRC customers engaging us for our DD
services without requiring our fit out services despite a slight
decrease in the revenue derived from the DD projects in PRC.
The decrease in the revenue derived from the DD projects in
PRC was fully off-set by the increase in the revenue derived
from the DD projects in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R e B AT

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our Group’s
gross profit and gross profit margin by type of projects and by
geographical locations:

EFRERE

RIEHEMNMWECEE SN AREENR
EMRFAFHN TR

FY2016 FY2015
—E-AMBEE —E-RHUBREE
HK$’000 Margin (%) HK$’ 000 Margin (%)
THT EFHNE®) FAEL  ERE%)
DD WERRES
PRC R 18,572 82.0% 19,752 82.0%
Hong Kong BB 3,737 96.8% 1,092 96.5%
Singapore N 406 33.6% - -
Subtotal IINET 22,715 81.9% 20,844 82.6%
DFD B CRERERN
PRC B - - 881 52.4%
Hong Kong BB 24,930 28.2% 38,513 29.0%
Subtotal IINET 24,930 28.2% 39,394 29.3%
Total st 47,645 41.1% 60,238 37.8%

The overall gross profit decreased by approximately $12.6
million from approximately HK$60.2 million for FY2015 to
approximately HK$47.6 million for FY2016. Such decrease
was mainly in line with the overall downward trend of the total
revenue, where significant decrease of HK$13.6 million in
gross profit derived from the DFD projects in Hong Kong were
recorded during the FY2016.

In FY2016, the gross profit margin of the DD projects was
at 81.9%, while the gross profit margin of the DFD projects
was at 28.2%. The gross profit margin of the DD projects
was generally higher than that of the DFD projects which
require our fit out service. The DD projects involved fewer
subcontractors than the DFD projects allowing rooms for
higher mark-up in consideration of the quality of our interior
design solution services; and the major cost components
of the DD projects were direct staff costs and drafting
subcontractors cost, which were common cost components
shared among all of our projects, resulting in a relatively
higher gross profit margin to the DD projects. The overall
gross profit margin increased by 3.3% from 37.8% in FY2015
to 41.1% in FY2016 due to the change in the mix of DD
projects and DFD projects. In FY2016, there was a decrease
in the portion of DFD projects of which had a relatively lower
gross profit margin, resulting in a higher overall gross profit
margin.

10 LC Group Holdings Limited REf&E B HR A S
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI R o B AT

The gross profit margin of the DD projects remained stable at
81.9% for FY2016 (FY2015: 82.6%). While there was only a
slight decrease in the gross profit margin of the DFD projects
from 29.3% for FY2015 to 28.2% for FY2016. It was because
our Group did not compete with market participants for any
DFD projects in Hong Kong with too low profit margin, so as
to avoid any negative financial impact to our Group.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses decreased by approximately
HK$15.4 million from approximately HK$35.5 million in
FY2015 to approximately HK$20.1 million in FY2016. This
was mainly due to the one-off initial public offering expenses
of approximately HK$14.8 million (charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income)
in FY2015. The listing exercise was completed in FY2015.

Profit for the year

The profit for the year increased by approximately HK$3.2
million from approximately HK$21.0 million in FY2015
to approximately HK$24.2 million in FY2016. However,
carving out the one-off initial public offering expenses of
approximately HK$14.8 million (charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income)
in FY2015, profit for the year recorded a significant decrease
of 32.4% from approximately HK$35.8 million in FY2015 to
approximately HK$24.2 million in FY2016. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in gross profit as explained in the
section headed “Gross profit and gross profit margin”.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30 September 2016, the Group had 23 employees
(2015: 20) in Hong Kong. The total remuneration paid by the
Group to its employees (including directors) for the current
financial year was approximately HK$14.4 million (FY2015:
HK$13.1 million).

RZZT—RNEHFEE LR SEMIEE
MEFKREFEBT A81.9% (T — 1Y
BEE :82.6%) o kit « HIEREMIEBE Y
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R e B AT

The objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to
maintain fair and competitive packages based on business
requirements and industry practice. In order to determine
the level of remuneration paid to its employees (including
directors and senior management), the following factors are
considered:

° workload, responsibility and job complexity;

° business requirements;

° individual performance and contribution to results;

° company performance and profitability;

° retention considerations and the potential of individuals;
° corporate goals and objectives;

° market rates and changes in relevant markets, including
supply and demand fluctuations and changes in
competitive conditions; and

° general economic situation.

In addition to salaries, provident fund scheme and medical
insurance coverage and discretionary bonuses are available
to employees. Level of remuneration is reviewed annually.
During the review process, no individual director is involved in
decisions relating to his own remuneration.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 September 2016, the Group had a total cash and
bank balances of approximately HK$154.2 million (2015:
HK$130.6 million) mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The increase in total cash and bank balances was mainly due
to the net cash of HK$26.4 million generated from operating
activities.

The Group continued to maintain a healthy liquidity position.
At as 30 September 2016, the Group had net current assets
of approximately HK$152.7 million (2015: HK$130.7 million).
The Group had current ratio of approximately 10.3 times as
at 30 September 2016 compared to that of approximately
5.1 times at 30 September 2015. The improvement in the
Group’s liquidity position was mainly attributable to the better
utilisation of working capital.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI R o B AT

The gearing ratio of the Group is defined as a percentage
of interest-bearing liabilities divided by total equity. As at
30 September 2016, the Group did not have any borrowing
(2015: Nil). Hence, as at 30 September 2016, the gearing
ratio was Nil (2015: Nil). The Group’s working capital
requirements were mainly financed by internal resources.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue in Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi and also incurs cost in Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk with respect mainly to Renminbi which may affect the
Group’s performance. The management is aware of the
possible exchange rate exposure due to the continuing
fluctuation of Renminbi and will closely monitor its impact on
the performance of the Group to see if any hedging policy is
necessary. The Group currently does not have any foreign
currency hedging policy.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

There was no pledged asset as at 30 September 2016 (2015:
Nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SHARE
OFFER

The net proceeds from the Company’s share offer in
September 2015 amounted to approximately HK$100.0
million (after deducting underwriting commissions and all
related expenses). Such net proceeds are intended to be
applied in accordance with the proposed application as set
out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
in the Company’s prospectus dated 21 August 2015 (the
“Prospectus”). As at 30 September 2016, the Company did
not utilise any of the net proceeds and deposited the entire
amount of the net proceeds in bank accounts.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at
30 September 2016 (2015: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no significant outstanding capital commitment
as at 30 September 2016 (2015: Nil).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their
report together with the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30 September 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in one-stop integrated
interior design solutions including design, fit out and
decoration as well as project management. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group and an analysis of the
Group’s performance during the year ended 30 September
2016 are provided in “Chairman’s Statement” on page 6
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 8.
Description of the principal risks and uncertainties that the
Group is facing can be found in “Chairman’s Statement”
on page 6. Also, the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group can be found in note 6(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

No important events affecting the Group have occurred
since the end of the financial year ended 30 September
2016. The Group’s future business development is set out in
“Chairman’s Statement” on page 6.

GROUP REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on
19 January 2015 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands. In
preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange, the Group underwent the reorganisation
pursuant to which the Company became the holding
company of the companies now comprising the Group on 3
August 2015. For details of the group reorganisation, please
refer to the paragraph headed “History, Reorganisation and
Corporate Structure — Reorganisation” in the Prospectus.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Stock
Exchange since 8 September 2015.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 September
2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on page 43.

The Directors do not recommend any payment of final
dividend for the year ended 30 September 2016.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five years is set out on page
124.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 30 September
2016, calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands amounted to approximately HK$108.3 million (2015:
HK$108.6 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement’s in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 30 September 2016.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LEONG Hing Loong Rudoff (Chairman)
Ms. CHEW Christina Mooi Chong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. SHIH Steven Chun Ning

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Hamilton Ty
Mr. LEE Frank King-ting
Mr. HO Hin Yip

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. SHIH Steven Chun Ning and Mr. HO Hin
Yip will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). The Company considered all of the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with any member of the Group which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested in
any business which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during
the year ended 30 September 2016.

16 LC Group Holdings Limited REf&E B HR A S

EF
FARBERAREEMUEAARNEFHT :

RITEE

RELE L (F)E)
Bt (T AR ZL)
MERE ST A

BUFRTESE

EHEERE
FHREE
(CEVE ¥

RIBAR B 2 B ERAAE84()K - IeiRE
RERMITELEERNEERRBFAEG L
BT ERERITFEEEEET-

ARBEERBUFNTETRERERS
REBXMES EmARRA(TEMHRRDFH
BABKIER Z B M FEHRR - ARARR
PRBUFATEFH/BULAL -

EEZRBEH

BREERRBFAS LBEETLRES
HEEAREEIMKE AR LEMNREE
WAFAEBAR—FANMERE OXE
BRERIN MR LEMEL) -

EENRERBcER

REBE-_ZT-XNFAA=ZTHILFE #E
ERFEYAREAREEREEAHEE
BEZEMEBRNEPHEA R -




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 30 September 2016, the Company
arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out in the section headed “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 24 to 28.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 September 2016, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong, the “SFO”)) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of the SFO; as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Approximate
percentage of
issued shares

HEBTRIG

Number B¥HESt

Name of Directors Nature of interest of shares (Note 1)

EEkR EaNHHE Kin®E (MF&E1)

Mr. LEONG Hing Loong Rudoff  Interest of controlled 375,000,000 75.0%
(“Mr. LEONG”) (Note 2) corporation

REESE([REE]D (HF2) XWEENER 375,000,000 75.0%

Ms. CHEW Christina Mooi Chong Interest of spouse 375,000,000 75.0%

(“Ms. CHEW”) (Note 3)
Azt (A=) (f33) KekEm 375,000,000 75.0%
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Notes:

1. The percentage figures were calculated based on 500,000,000 ordinary
shares (“Shares”) of the Company having a par value of HK$0.01 each in
issue as of 30 September 2016.

2. Mr. LEONG was beneficially interested in 75% of the issued share capital
of Starcross Group Limited (“SGL”). SGL was the registered holder
of 375,000,000 Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Mr. LEONG was
therefore deemed to have interests in 375,000,000 Shares in which SGL
was interested.

3. Ms. CHEW, being the spouse of Mr. LEONG, was therefore deemed to
have interests in the same parcel of the Shares in which Mr. LEONG was
interested under Part XV of the SFO.

4. All interests stated above represented long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2016, none of
the Directors and chief executive had any interests or short
positions in any Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO or which were required to be
entered in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 September 2016, the following person (other than
the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company which would be required to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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il I

Approximate
percentage of
issued Shares

HERTERG

Number B¥HvEst

Name of shareholder Nature of interest of Shares (Note 1)
BREE EaKH K8 E (BRF5E1)
SGL (Note 2) Beneficial owner 375,000,000 75.0%
SGL (Fff7E2) E=fEAA 375,000,000 75.0%

18 LC Group Holdings Limited REf&E B HR A S




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWE

Notes:

1. The percentage figures were calculated based on 500,000,000 Shares in
issue as of 30 September 2016.

2. SGL was the registered holder of 375,000,000 Shares.

3. All interests stated above as at 30 September 2016 represented long
positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2016, the
Company had not been notified of any other persons (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which would be required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 14 August
2015 (“Share Option Scheme”), the Company may grant
share options to any directors, employees, consultants,
customers, suppliers of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interests (“Invested Entity”) who, in the sole discretion of the
Board, have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group so as to provide incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the success of the Group’s
operation. During the year ended 30 September 2016, no
share option was granted by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme.

Summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme is as
follows:

(a) Purposes

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to enable
the Group to grant options to the eligible participants to
(i) motivate them to optimise their performance efficiently
for the benefit of the Group; and (i) attract and retain or
maintain on-going business relationship with the eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be benéficial
to the long-term growth of the Group.
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(b) Eligible Participants

(c)

(d)

(e)

20

Any employees (whether full time or part time), directors
(including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any subsidiary
of the Group or any Invested Entity, any customers,
suppliers of goods and services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity and such other
persons or entities (“Eligible Participants”) who, in the
sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group
or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of Shares available for
issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted
and issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
total number of Shares in issue from time to time. The
total number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as
at the date of listing of the Shares unless the Company
obtains the approval of the shareholders in general
meeting for refreshment.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible
Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i)  each Eligible Participant must not exceed 1.0% of
the total number of Shares in issue; and

(i)  a substantial shareholder of the Company or an
independent non-executive director must not
exceed 0.1% of the total number of Shares in
issue and not exceed HK$5.0 million in aggregate
value.

Period within which the Shares must be taken
up under an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the

date on which it is granted or such shorter period as the
Board may specify at the time of grant.
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(f) Minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held

No minimum period for which the option has to be held
before it can be exercised is specified in the Share
Option Scheme.

(g) Period open for acceptable of an option and
amount payable upon acceptance

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an
Eligible Participant within 21 days from the date of the
offer of grant of the option. A consideration of HK$1.00
is payable on acceptable of the offer of grant of an
option.

(h) Basis of determining the subscription price of
an option

The exercise price must be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant;
(i) the average closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

(i) Validity of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 13 August 2025 unless otherwise terminated
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASES SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 30 September 2016 and
up to the date of this report was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
30 September 2016.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 30 September 2016, the Group’s
five largest group customers by related groups in aggregate
accounted for approximately 85.3% of the Group’s total
turnover. The largest group customer accounted for
approximately 31.3% of the Group’s total turnover.

During the year ended 30 September 2016, the Group’s five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately
39.2% of the Group’s total purchases. The largest supplier
accounted for approximately 17.4% of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the
Directors, their respective associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken
in the normal course of business are provided under note 30
to the consolidated financial statements, and none of which
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Corporate Governance Report are set out on
page 29.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules during the year ended 30 September 2016
and up to the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the

Group after 30 September 2016 and up to the date of this
annual report.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
September 2016 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited, who will retire and, being eligible, offer itself
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

LEONG Hing Loong Rudoff
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 December 2016
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/ EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BITESE
Mr. LEONG Hing Loong Rudoff, aged 49, was REEXSE 495 B = £¢ A+h

appointed as our Director on 19 January 2015, and was as HEEZFT A& = - I[B’\ —hEMA
re-designated as our executive Director on 24 April 2015. Mr. =+ HEFHT AHITES o %%EZ%E'J Fi
LEONG is one of our founders and is primarily responsible for A7 — FZAEAEENEESTHRERE R
the overall strategic development, management of our Group EIE UNEEBEFBEE WKINALKQGE
and managing client relationship. He is also a member of the FEE@ETHMEZES ((FMEES|) NIES
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) ZHE&@ ([IRBEZEE]|)KE - BhEANRE
and nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) Ex/E ZERBERAATNITEEFELE
of the Board of the Company. Mr. LEONG is the chairman #Z +#/EE o

of our Group, a controlling shareholder and the spouse of

Ms. CHEW Christina Mooi Chong, executive Director of the

Company.

Mr. LEONG has over 22 years of experience in architectural 25 A A@M2FEREN T - TRHRE RE
design, and interior design and fit out with most of such E&E&E  KPLKEBEBTLLEE NAEH
experience gained in Hong Kong. Prior to the establishment B AT - 2 5% 4 10N 2 5 6 25 R H 2 45 fb
of our Group, Mr. LEONG had developed his career in F%  BMBFREEMER AN —NIN
architectural practices in both Australia and Hong Kong. Mr.  FHE KR REABEARNEE T EH20
LEONG has worked for our Group for over 20 years since £ o 24 NMEFRAERETHENRB QT
the commencement of business of LCL Architects Limited in  AJE S -

1996. Mr. LEONG is also a director of all subsidiaries within

our Group.

Mr. LEONG obtained a Bachelor's degree in Architecture 34t 4 — ﬂ/\ﬂ¢+ B RS RN T R A 2
from the University of Western Australia in Australia in HE§EEEE4 84 - FH— LN Z_FWA
December 1989. He has been a member of The Hong Kong MAZSEEZLAME e €8 «  S5ORMEBEM
Institute of Architects, an Overseas Member Level 1 of the & (FiEEMEEMEe)—f /e85 -
Royal Australian Institute of Architects (formerly known as ¥ B — QAL -F — AR AT E T MEs
the Australian Institute of Architects) since April 1992 and B ° 1)3%7‘{7?\—%?1 FE_E-_FRHEH
a registered architect in Hong Kong since January 1992. EXREEMEeRFFEHE@E - HEETA
He was also a Chartered International Member of the Royal 327 A+ (FEEERD) o

Institute of British Architects from 1992 to 2012. He is also

currently an authorised person (architect).

Ms. CHEW Christina Mooi Chong, aged 50, was JBA#EXLT 50 R —HAFNA
appointed as our Director on 24 April 2015, and was —+ /M HEZFAESE TR T —HEN
re-designated as our executive Director on 24 April 2015. A=+ BEEREAHTES - AL+ A8
Ms. CHEW is one of our founders and is primarily responsible A~ — T EAEEEALEMNATE
for overseeing the daily operation of our Group, including £ BiEEI1ERIEER HE%/\ A % B B K
generating and guiding design concepts, and supervising £ EMEEIFI AL+ AAEBETHE
the sales department of our Group. Ms. CHEW is the Chief & - 1ERERENALABETENRITES LM
Executive Officer of our Group, a controlling shareholder and  [E& AR EE -

the spouse of Mr. LEONG Hing Loong Rudoff, chairman and

executive Director of the Company.

Ms. CHEW has over 22 years of experience in architectural [EZ +TEBBM2FEREELRT  ERNHRTLE
design, and interior design and fit out with most of such (E&& @ KIEHOEBRETERE - RAEEH
experience gained in Hong Kong. Prior to the establishment  BX 7 A » A&+ ERMN N EBEEHLESERM
of our Group, Ms. CHEW had developed her career in S  BMBEREZEMARATR — AN
architectural practices in Australia and Hong Kong. Ms. EB UK AL+ E£AEBE T {E®20
CHEW has worked for our Group for over 20 years since 4 o BaZt+tNMEFAEBRETHRENBERR
the commencement of business of LCL Architects Limited in  H#JE = o

1996. Ms. CHEW is also a director of all subsidiaries within

our Group.
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Ms. CHEW obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Applied Science
(Architecture) and a Bachelor’'s degree in Architecture in
February 1988 and February 1990 respectively from Curtin
University of Technology (Western Australia). She has been a
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects since June
1994. She has also been an Overseas Member Level 1 of
the Royal Australian Institute of Architects (formerly known
as the Australian Institute of Architects) since April 1994,
a Chartered International Member of the Royal Institute of
British Architects since March 1995, a registered architect
in Hong Kong and an authorised person (architect) in Hong
Kong since January 1995.

Mr. SHIH Steven Chun Ning, aged 53, was appointed
as our Director on 24 April 2015, and was re-designated
as our executive Director on 24 April 2015. He is mainly
responsible for business development for our Group in the
PRC, managing client relationship and exploring new business
opportunities. He also coordinates drafting services for our
Group.

Mr. SHIH has over 10 years of banking experience with a
number of investment banks in Hong Kong from 1988 to
1999. Mr. SHIH left the banking field in 1999, and invested
a majority stake in a listed company that was principally
engaged in the telephone handset design and manufacturing
in July 1999 which was formerly listed on the Stock Exchange
and he became the chairman in September 1999. He later
disposed of his shareholding interests of that company in
2000. He is currently a director of each of Tung Mei Design
(H.K.) Holding Co. Limited (“TM Design”) and #3IITH= %%
st TEBR AR (Shenzhen Meike Design and Construction
Company Limited*) (“SZ Meike”), and a shareholder of TM
Design. TM Design and SZ Meike are principally engaged
in providing design and fit out work for retail shops and
a number of commercial offices, and providing drafting
services, respectively. For details of such companies
please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors and Senior
Management — Potential Competing Interests” in the
Prospectus. Mr. SHIH joined our Group in 2011 to develop
our Group’s business in Hong Kong and the PRC and later
provided drafting work service to our Group.

Mr. SHIH obtained his Bachelor’'s degree in Science from
the University of British Columbia in 1986 and his Master’s
degree in Business Administration from the same university in
1988.

*  For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TANG Hamilton Ty, aged 53, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 13 August 2015. Mr.
TANG is also a chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of
the Board of the Company and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. TANG has over 17 years of experience in investment. He
had worked at Morgan Stanley Asia Limited from February
1993 to July 1996 specialising in investment banking.
Since 2000, Mr. TANG has been the Chief Executive Officer
of Simon Murray & Co Limited, a company engaged in
investment, fund management and investment advisory.

Mr. TANG received his Bachelor of Arts degree in History
and Master’s degree in Business Administration from
Harvard University and Harvard Business School in June
1985 and June 1990, respectively. He also obtained a juris
doctorate from Harvard Law School in June 1991. He was a
Responsible Officer of Landmark Asset Management Limited,
a corporation which is licensed to carry on Type 4 (advising
on securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the SFO from January 2008 to October 2010.
He resumed the role of Responsible Officer of Landmark
Asset Management Limited in May 2012 and has been in the
same position since then.

Mr. LEE Frank King-ting, aged 60, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 13 August 2015. Mr.
LEE is also a chairman of the Nomination Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.

Mr. LEE has over 12 years of experience in production,
design, test, product management and marketing in
the specialised industry of digital telecommunication
semiconductors/integrated circuits. He joined Tom Lee Music
Company Limited as the Director of Marketing in April 1994.
He is currently the president and a director of Tom Lee Music
Co., Ltd. in Hong Kong as well as a director of Tom Lee
Music Foundation Limited.
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Mr. LEE graduated from the Faculty of Electrical Engineering
at the University of British Columbia in Canada in May
1979. He was previously a member of the Consumer
Council, Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Hong
Kong Jockey Club Music and Dance Fund, Member of the
Telecommunications (Competition Provisions) Appeal Board
and President of the Rotary Club of Kowloon. At present, he
is a member of the Advisory Committee on Arts Development,
Chairman of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce
Retail & Tourism Committee, a member of the Zhejiang
Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, an appointed member of the Quality
Tourism Services Association Governing Council, a member
of the council of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts.

Mr. HO Hin Yip, aged 42, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 13 August 2015. He is also a
chairman of the Audit Committee.

Mr. HO has more than 18 years of financial and auditing
experience. He was also appointed as an independent non-
executive director of each of PME Group Limited (stock
code: 379), Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited (stock
code: 309) and Jiyi Household International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1495), all are companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, since 21 December 2012, 29
December 2014 and 6 October 2015, respectively. Mr. HO
is also currently the Financial Controller and Joint Company
Secretary of Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited, a Singapore
listed company, where he is responsible for the finance and
accounting functions, statutory compliance and corporate
governance affairs.

He obtained his Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in December
1997 in Hong Kong. He was admitted as an associate
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
in October 2000 and is currently practising as a certified
public accountant. He was also admitted as a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in August
2005.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. CHAN Kin Yee Paula, aged 44, joined our Group
in 1997 as the office manager and was promoted to
project manager and associate director in 2002 and 2005,
respectively. Ms. CHAN has been in the same position since
then. Ms. CHAN is responsible for project management,
coordination with different parties and progress monitoring.

Ms. CHAN obtained her Bachelor’'s degree in business
administration from Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology
in August 2002 through distance learning.

Ms. KHO Ngai Wah, aged 41, joined our Group in June
2002 as an interior designer. She was then promoted as the
associate director in 2005 and has been in the same position
till present. Ms. KHO is responsible for overseeing all the
strategic activities related to interior design of our Group. She
has 13 years of experience in interior design.

Ms. KHO received the Diploma in Design (Interior) and the
Higher Certificate in Design (Interior) from Lee Wai Lee
Technical Institute, currently known as the Hong Kong
Institute of Vocational Education, in August 1995 and July
1997, respectively.

Mr. CHENG Chun Shing, aged 42, joined our Group in
January 2015 and was appointed as our company secretary
and chief financial officer in April 2015. Mr. CHENG is
primarily responsible for overseeing the overall financial
management of our Group and company secretarial matters.

Mr. CHENG has extensive experience in accounting, auditing,
and corporate financial management about 18 years. He has
over 12 years of audit experience in international accounting
firms.

Mr. CHENG obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in November 1997 in Hong Kong. He was admitted as an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in January 2001 and was admitted
a fellow member in October 2014. He has also been an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales since January 2008.
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders of the Company and to enhance corporate
value and responsibility. The Board comprises three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The Board has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. During the year ended 30 September 2016
and up to the date of this report, the Company has complied
with the code provisions under the CG Code, except for the
deviation mentioned below:

Code Provision A.6.7

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and non-executive directors should attend general
meetings. However, Mr. TANG Hamilton Ty was unable to
attend the annual general meeting held in Hong Kong on 26
February 2016 as he had another business engagement.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that it continues to meet the requirements
under the Code Provisions.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
Directors in dealing in the Company’s securities. Specific
enquiries have been made to all Directors and all Directors
have confirmed that they have fully complied with the required
standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code during the
year ended 30 September 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board has established
three board committees, being the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
(each a “Board Committee” and collectively the “Board
Committees”), to oversee different areas of the Company’s
affairs.
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Board currently comprises three executive Directors,

namely Mr. LEONG Hing Loong Rudoff, Ms. CHEW Christina
Mooi Chong and Mr. SHIH Steven Chun Ning and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. TANG
Hamilton Ty, Mr. LEE Frank King-ting and Mr. HO Hin Yip.

The

posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the

Company are separately held by Mr. LEONG Hing Loong
Rudoff and Ms. CHEW Christina Mooi Chong, respectively,
to maintain an segregation of duties between the Chairman’s
responsibility to manage the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer’s responsibility to manage the Group’s business and
oversee the management.

Their biographical details and (where applicable) their family
relationships are set out in the section headed “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 24 to 28 in this
annual report. A list of the Directors identifying their roles

and

functions is available on the Stock Exchange’s and the

Company’s website.

The

Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and

strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance and reviews the corporate governance standard
of the Group. It also decides on matters such as annual and
interim results, major transactions, director appointments or
re-appointments, investment policy, dividend and accounting
policies. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing its business strategies and
managing the daily operations of the Group’s businesses to
the executive Directors and members of senior management.
The functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed
periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their

first

appointment, the directorships or other positions they

are concurrently holding at other companies or organisations.
These interests are updated on an annual basis and when
necessary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out
by the Board pursuant to provision D.3.1 of the CG Code,
which include (a) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; (b) to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Group; (c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies

and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and relevant
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the annual
report of the Company.
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BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Regular board meetings are held at quarterly intervals with
additional meetings convened as and when necessary
to discuss the overall strategic directions, the Group’s
operations, financial performance, and to approve interim
and annual results and other significant matters. For regular
meetings, Board members are given at least 14 days prior
notice and agenda with supporting papers are sent to
Directors not less than 3 days before the relevant meeting is
held. Directors may propose to the Chairman or the Company
Secretary to include matters in the agenda for regular board
meetings.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect
interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions to be
considered by the Board at board meetings and abstain from
voting on the related board resolutions as appropriate.

Minutes of meetings of the Board and Board Committees
are kept by the Company Secretary in sufficient details of
the matters considered and decisions reached, including
dissenting views expressed, and are open for inspection on
reasonable notice by any Director. Draft and final versions
of minutes are sent to all Directors for their comments and
records respectively within a reasonable time after the board
meeting is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring the Board
procedures are followed.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board held five Board meetings during the year ended
30 September 2016. The attendance of each Director at the
Board meetings is set out in the paragraph headed “Board
Committees” below. During the year under review, the Board
reviewed the disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report
to ensure compliance.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance coverage has been arranged in respect
of indemnification against costs, charges, losses, expenses
and liabilities that may be incurred by the Directors and
officers of the Company in the execution and discharge of
their duties.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
shareholders and have exercised their duties with care,
skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the
Group. They have to participate in continuous professional
development through internal or external training organised by
the Company. During the year ended 30 September 2016, the
Company organised a training session relating to connected
transactions under the Listing Rules to each of the Directors.
All directors attended the training and complied with the
requirement of the CG Code on continuous professional
development during the year ended 30 September 2016.

Every newly appointed director will receive an induction to
ensure that he has a proper understanding of the business
and operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of his
duties and responsibilities as a director under applicable rules
and requirements.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to
provide independent and objective opinions to the Board,
giving adequate control and balances for the Group to protect
the overall interests of the shareholders and the Group. They
serve actively on the Board and its committees to provide
their independent and objective views.

In compliance with rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three independent non-
executive Directors, representing more than one-third of
the Board. One of the independent non-executive Directors
namely, Mr. HO Hin Yip, has the appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written confirmation of his
independence and has satisfied itself of such independence in
accordance with the independent guidelines as set out in rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by three committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Each Board Committee has its
defined and written terms of reference approved by the
Board covering its duties, powers and functions. Their terms
of reference are available on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.

(i) Audit committee

As at 30 September 2016 and the date of this report,
the Audit Committee comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. TANG Hamilton Ty, Mr.
LEE Frank King-ting and Mr. Ho Hin Yip. Mr. HO Hin
Yip, who has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board in reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting and internal control system. The Audit
Committee also provides an important link between the
Board and the Company’s external auditors in matters
within the scope of the financial audit of the Group.

There were five meetings of the Audit Committee
held during the year ended 30 September 2016. The
attendance of each Director at the Audit Committee
meetings is set out on page 35. During the year under
review, the members of the Audit Committee reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, reviewed the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 31 March
2016 and for the year ended 30 September 2016
and discussed the internal controls together with the
management.
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Remuneration committee

As at 30 September 2016 and the date of this
report, the Remuneration Committee comprised two
independent non-executive Directors and one executive
Director, namely Mr. TANG Hamilton Ty, Mr. LEE Frank
King-ting and Mr. LEONG Hing Loong Rudoff. Mr.
TANG Hamilton Ty is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on, among other
matters, our Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of all Directors and senior managements,
and the remuneration packages for all Executive
Directors and senior management.

There was one meeting of the Remuneration Committee
held during the year ended 30 September 2016. The
attendance of each Director at the Remuneration
Committee meeting is set out on page 35. During the
year under review, the members of the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the existing remuneration policy
and package of all existing Directors and senior
management.

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out
in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination committee

As at 30 September 2016 and date of this report, the
Nomination Committee comprised two independent
non-executive Directors and one executive Director,
namely Mr. TANG Hamilton Ty, Mr. LEE Frank King-
ting and Mr. LEONG Hing Loong Rudoff. Mr. LEE Frank
King-ting is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee has the responsibility to
review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at
least annually and to identify individuals suitably qualified
to become members of the Board in accordance
with the board diversity policy. It is also responsible
for assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors and making recommendations
to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors.
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There was one meeting of the Nomination Committee
held during the year ended 30 September 2016.
The attendance of each Director at the Nomination
Committee meeting is set out below. During the
year under review, the members of the Nomination
Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board and reviewed the objectives set for
implementing the board diversity policy.

The individual attendance records of each Director at
the physical meetings of the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
and at the general meeting of the Company during the
year ended 30 September 2016 are set out below:

REBEE-_ZTE—XR"FNLA=THILFE -
REZEELRT —AEH -BES
JRARZEEEHRLEREEEN T -
REBEFE REZEEKERTE
EesRE - RERANK UTRTE
MBEESKXEZL TILBERMREZB

Tﬁjo
BN

BE_T-—XRFALA=THALFE"
FEFHLRFEFS ERZBE
@Hiﬁ&k%éz/*‘\** ARAER

HE E R

BERAE Z R HEREHIMT

Number of physical meetings attended/held during his/her tenure

REEHAHE BTz EERE
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EFNS EFg EUTRE FHZERE REZRE BREAE
Mr. LEONG Hing Loong REESE 5/5 N/A 1/1 11 11
Rudoff NEHA
Ms. CHEW Christina Mooi it &+ 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Chong i A A
Mr. SHIH Steven Chun MRELAE 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Ning i Nk A
Mr. TANG Hamilton Ty FEHELE 4/5 4/5 0/1 0/1 0/1
Mr. LEE Frank King-ting FWARE 4/5 5/5 11 1/1 1/1
Mr. HO Hin Yip EIES 5/5 5/5 N/A N/A 11
T A
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from the date of appointment
and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from the date of appointment.
Each of the Directors will be subject to retirement and
re-election at annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
a person may be appointed as a director either by the
shareholders in general meeting or by the Board. Any
directors appointed by the Board as additional directors or to
fill casual vacancies shall hold office until the next following
general meeting, and are eligible for re-election by the
shareholders. In addition, all directors are required to retire by
rotation at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting of the Company, and are eligible for re-election by
the shareholders.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance and adopted a board diversity policy. The board
diversity policy sets out that the Company should endeavour
to ensure that its Board members have the appropriate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that
are required to support the execution of its business strategy
and in order for the Board to be effective.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHENG Chun Shing has been appointed as company
secretary of the Company since April 2015. He fulfills the
requirement under rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. He is
responsible for advisory the Board on corporate governance
matters. During the year ended 30 September 2016, he has
taken over 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Group’s consolidated financial statements which give a
true and fair view of the Group’s financial position, financial
performance and cash flows for the year and in accordance
with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The Group has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent
and reasonable judgements and estimates. The Board
considers that the Group has adequate resources to continue
in business for the foreseeable future and not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
affect the business of the Group or cast doubts on its ability
to continue as going concern.

The responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors with
respect to financial reporting are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditors’ Report” in this annual report.

Internal controls

The Board recognises its responsibility to ensure the
Company maintains a sound and effective internal control
system. The Group’s internal control system is designed to
safeguard assets against misappropriation and unauthorised
disposition and to manage operational risks. During the
year ended 30 September 2016, the Company engaged an
external professional firm to conduct an annual review in order
to assist the Audit Committee to assess the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system. The review covering
major financial, operational and compliance controls, as well
as risk management functions, was done on a systematic
basis based on the risk assessments of the operations and
controls. No significant deficiency was identified during the
review.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has been appointed
as the external auditors of the Company for the year ended
30 September 2016. The Audit Committee was notified of
the nature and the service charges of non-audit services
performed by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited during the
year ended 30 September 2015 and considered that such
services did not have adverse effect on the independence of
the external auditors.
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During the year ended 30 September 2016, the remuneration
paid and payable to HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited is
set out as below:

RBEZE-Z-—XRNFAA=THILFE BN
NN TR EBHMAER D E 25 M
;N

FY2016

ﬁ_I\

M FEE

HK$’ 000

FET

Audit service FHit R 800
There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit HE-_ZT—<XFHLA=-THIEE 5
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external  BAFEixZ B @ M 5t PkiE & & FHNEB A B Em

auditors during the year ended 30 September 2016. FEEZ -

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The controlling shareholders of the Company entered into a
deed of non-competition in favour of the Company dated 13
August 2015 (“Deed of Non-competition”) as set out in the
paragraph headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders
— Deed of Non-competition” in the Prospectus. The
controlling shareholders confirmed their compliance of all the
undertakings provided under the Deed of Non-competition.
There are no matters which required to be deliberated
by the independent non-executive Directors in relation
to the compliance and enforcement of the Deed of Non-
competition and it is considered that the terms of the Deed
of Non-competition have been complied by the controlling
shareholders.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhancing investor relations. It
is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of
corporate information to its shareholders and investment
public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual
and interim reports. The corporate website of the Company
(www.lchk.hk) has provided an effective communication
platform to the public and the shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION

The Company has adopted shareholders communication
policy with objective to provide our shareholders with
accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information
about the Company so that they can exercise their rights
in an informed manner. The Company would review the
shareholders communication policy on a regular basis.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure
its shareholders are kept well informed of key business
development. These include annual general meeting, annual
report, various notices, announcements and circulars. The
annual general meeting and other general meetings of the
Company are primary forum for communication between
the Company and its shareholders. The members of the
Board, Board Committees and the external auditors are
present to answer shareholders’ questions at the annual
general meeting of the Company. The Company shall provide
shareholders with relevant information on the resolution(s)
proposed at a general meeting in a timely manner in
accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided
shall be reasonably necessary to enable shareholders to
make an informed decision on the proposed resolution(s). As
a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information
are posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to
the Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong
with any inquiries.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose
new resolutions at the general meetings under Companies
Law of the Cayman lIslands. However, shareholders are
requested to follow Article 58 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, general meetings shall be convened on the
written requisition of any one or more members holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO BEREAELEAETENER
PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A

DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for HERKREIRZARBR2AIZERNITIESTHIEX
election as a director of the Company are laid down in Article £ 5l A R A G 4AH 44 Z 24 BIE8515 - B3
85 of the Company’s Articles of Association. No person ZZEHEZR2ZE SABHILAEERKEERET
other than a director retiring at the meeting shall, unless AR E FERENRE (T IERDELE)FE
recommended by the directors for election, be eligible for @%1 > REAEHIIRZHE F%/\iQLE’]ﬁlﬂ
election as a director at any general meeting unless a notice @HEEZATEZSZBNEPES 2R
signed by a member (other than the person to be proposed) A& FiEFEZEES) ﬂ%%ﬁEEHAiEéW
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which AEMREAES 2 EEE= - FHRBEHMNESR
such notice is given of his intention to propose such person 5&“*5%?%#)#??5 BARAELRE(7)
for election and also a notice signed by the person to be M ERMERNTEEBIEREENR
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been %K@@%%&E%%ﬁ_& R 2R ZEBANA
lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided HIfiATREBHBEESHREADSEER
that the minimum length of the period, during which such BRI ERFEAZBREASETHER+(7)
notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that H o

(if the notices are submitted after the despatch of the notice

of the general meeting appointed for such election) the

period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the

day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting

appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7)

days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for JREIEZLAE L EAEENREFFENAA
election as a director are available on the Company’s website. & 443k TI| & -

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIESTO MEZFS®RZHEZHNERF
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, KRB EEESHFBSEZAA T GFTHAT
for the attention of company secretary, by mail to 21st Floor, FZAUHE A) « ik BE B DB EF 44
Wyndham Place, No.44 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong SiZERIFES 214 o

Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS HEBEEXH

During the year ended 30 September 2016 and up to the date REZE - —NENA=+BILEFE KAKF
of this annual report, the Company has not made any change %R B H] - KA 53 ¥ H 4R 4 =12 S E
to its constitutional documents. A consolidated version of  {F{a] & &) o NA B4 4% ZEFL 4R S ARAS /]
the Company’s constitutional documents is available on the RAARATBILR H BT ABILER o
Company’s website and the website of the Hong Kong Stock

Exchange.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE BHEEE

The Company discloses information in compliance with ZARAGEN FHRBBEER - RIEEAH
the Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and :x& & i=# FHE A T 2 l?zi&/“i °
announcements to the public in accordance with the relevant ZIK REZEBESRREEE AR -
laws and regulations. The primary focus of the Company is to ERECBEBENTE BRERRE &ﬁ
ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful %&’AET’X@E{’EHJ'/\@ HIBFRTE ©

and complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as

well as the public to make rational and informed decisions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

LC GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of LC
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to
1283, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 September 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
RS Z AN RS

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY BB EE

==

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these EEMETLENEEWERIE  HZRE
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to GZ&BHBREIELETR Y HBREMLE
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other JREHE > MM EEMELE - EE T A
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept R #) A A $HF (] H ith A + B & A (E (]
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. &H{f - EZERESSSIAMALSEHGNE
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong BETEREITER - ZSHEBERKELE
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of  SF:E/=4R %5 Wi B RHITHEZ - LA ERE
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that FZEGAMNBEHEREEFEEEMENER
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform it o

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit BB NATEFANEREBES P EREK
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the MHLBRFEEERNETZEE - METH
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected 2 UL A ZEEI &9 HE - B IE(E AR R
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment FESiERMEB G SV ERRFEEAER
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated [Fui#HyEE - E T HZSEGE  ZHMe
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making ZEH QA RIHFEEET M AT kIR AL
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control A8 R RAEA R ILEIE - AELRAHEZ
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial Z{ER NEEMNSEZEF BRI IESEHA
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design RAIE)NEPEEIEHINELER B R - BN B
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, EIEZEMMAMN ST RENS BN RTE
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the HEH @ HEHASEM - LRI ELES B
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also $FERMBEEZHH -

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made

by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation

of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is EZHE BEEMESHEREBEREN
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit EEMAETEMNEXRE FLIZHER -
opinion.

OPINION ZR

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at

EERR REGEMBBRREBBEETEY
%4

30 September 2016 and of their financial performance and =
H
&

FEEREEMA TR SEEEN
—RNENLA=ZTENF BRI REBEZ
LFEENMBRRERERE YO BER
BRAGHIN B EERMEZERE -

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly >
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited BEEHMEERERAT
Certified Public Accountants HEGEHAD

Wong Sze Wai, Basilia wRE

Practising Certificate Number: PO5806 MEBERT - PO5806

Hong Kong, 16 December 2016 FE —T—XNF+=-HA+/XH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
fr = 18w A B B T W R

For the year ended 30 September 2016

#HE20165F9A30H L FE
2016 2015
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt & TET FHET
Revenue Wz 7 116,021 159,527
Cost of sales 5 5 B AR (68,376) (99,289)
Gross profit EF 47,645 60,238
Other revenue and other gains H b Y am K H A & A 8 1,779 1,017
Other operating expenses Hihgamt (1,049) (687)
Administrative expenses THAX (20,096) (35,515)
Profit before taxation B 5 B 4 A 9 28,279 25,053
Taxation Bi1E 10 (4,098) (4,103)
Profit and total comprehensive FRREMNRBEZEBA
income for the year 24,181 20,950
Attributable to: THI AT FE(L -
Owners of the Company FiN/NEIE TSN 24,181 21,255
Non-controlling interests IR R A = (305)
Profit and total comprehensive FRREMNRBZEBA
income for the year 24,181 20,950
Earnings per share: GRRAT
Basic and diluted (HK cents) AR EE (BL) 14 4.8 5.6

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BaMIisEERKZELG A MEHRE 2 HKIH ©
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

fr e WA ILR

As at 30 September 2016

201649 H308
2016 2015
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B 2 FET FHET
Non-current asset EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEKEEB 15 3,878 1,775
Current assets mBEE
Trade receivables Z 5 W RIE 16 10,276 29,399
Amounts due from customers for EUEEAEHTENE
contract work 17 919 448
Deposits, prepayments and other &4 « JEfFRIE K&
receivables H {th B We 3008 18 3,765 2,022
Cash and bank balances Be KIRT4E 19 154,235 130,565
169,195 162,434
Current liabilities g =K
Trade payables E 5 ENFIE 20 6,629 15,067
Amounts due to customers for ERNEFAELHITIEFIE
contract work 17 726 2,210
Accrued expenses and other FERTFA X I H & < 50E
payables 21 1,448 4,534
Income tax payable ERAER 7,657 9,966
16,460 31,777
Net current assets MENEE R E 152,735 130,657
Total assets less current HEERTDAR
liabilities 156,613 132,432
Net assets EESE 156,613 132,432
Capital and reserves BER &R
Share capital fig A 22 5,000 5,000
Reserves ] 151,613 127,432
Total equity attributable to ELAFIHEAELEREESR
owners of the Company 156,613 132,432
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these B sEEKZELE S MFERFT ZHBKED ©

consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 16 December 2016.

On behalf of the board

LEONG Hing Loong Rudoff
REE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e REREER

For the year ended 30 September 2016

#HE20165F9A30H L FE
Attributable to owners of the Company
FORHEARN
Non-
Share Share Retained Other controlling
capital premium earnings reserve Sub-total interests Total
k% kiR REERT Rl Mt FERES a4
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Tin T iR FET FET TiEn FET
(Note 22) (Note)
(222 ()
As at 1 October 2014 NZF-mE+A-A 621 - 47,423 - 48,044 2,454 50,498
Profit and total comprehensive ~ F %I
income for the year BRENA - - 21,255 - 21,055 (305) 20,950
Change in ownership interests B RFHE
in subsidiaries En# - - - 2,149 2,149 (2,149 -
Effect of reorganisation Efvge (621) - - 621 - - -
Issue of shares k%4
- share offer -khEE 1,250 23,750 - - 25,000 - 125,000
- capitalisation isste -vY%:51 3,750 (3,750) - - - - -
Transaction costs attrioutable  E{7HR{7 Bl
toissue of share (Note 27(c)) 2R BRI (H327(c)) - (10,166) - - (10,166) - (10,166)
Dividend paid (Note 13) ERRE (FE13) - - (53,850) - (53,850) - (53,850)
As at 30 September 2015 RZE-EENA=TH 5,000 109,834 14,828 2,710 132,432 - 132,432
As at 1 October 2015 NZF-RE+A-H 5,000 109,834 14,828 2,710 132,432 - 132,432
Proft and total comprehensive ~~ EREFI&
income for the year BRENA - - 24,181 - 24,181 - 2418
As at 30 September 2016 RZE-R"EARZ1R 5,000 109,834 39,009 2,110 156,613 - 156,613
Note: B&E -
Other reserve H 1t 6k 0
Other reserve represented (i) the difference between the Group’s share of — Hfh{EEIEONAEF D HAWENEB QTSR ANE

nominal values of the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the
Group’s cost of acquisition of the subsidiaries under common control upon
the completion of the Group’s corporate re-organisation in the preparation
of the Company’s listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited; and (ii) the changes in the Group’s ownership interests in its

subsidiaries that do not result in the loss of control.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

BEFM BT TR L E AR A

BEREAEERASERAARNCEARAERIMERA
Al EMR £ AT 2 AR 1D 2 S A ST AR B AR BE R
HITHBRARNK AN EZE R
B TG R 2 S B T T B e AR o o

(N EEREKB AR

BB mR 2 EXED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
,\\/T\/\E/Euﬂi//w %’%

For the year ended 30 September 2016

#HE20165F9A30H L FE
2016 2015
/ Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt & TET FHET
Cash flows from operating BEITDEEZRERE
activities
Profit before taxation B 253 Al i 28,279 25,053
Adjustments for: MIATIEEEH A :
Bad debts written off 2 AR 9,16 162 520
Bank interest income RITFB WA 8 (833) (61)
Depreciation of property, plant WME - WEREETE
and equipment 9, 15 1,291 1,643
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE - WELEE
plant and equipment il 8 - (250)
Operating cash flows before BESSEHEZ
movements in working capital BEBERE 28,899 26,905
Decrease/(increase) in trade B S RKFERL
receivables (38 h0) 18,961 (23,242)
Increase in deposits, e~ TAREUE K E At E I
prepayments and other FRIBIE AN
receivables (1,586) (802)
Increase in amounts JEWEFPE A TEFHIE
due from customers for &
contract work (471) (330)
(Decrease)/increase in trade B 5 RE R D) N
payables (8,438) 8,445
(Decrease)/increase in amounts EREPaHTERE
due to customers for R 2) /48 hn
contract work (1,484) 1,403
(Decrease)/increase in accrued FEET A 2 I H e~ 3RIE
expenses and other payables CRLA) /18 (8,077) 2,373
Cash generated from operations KEEEZBRS 32,804 14,752
Hong Kong tax paid BRI EERIE (6,407) (239)
Net cash generated BEETRDEEZ
from operating activities REeERd 26,397 14,517
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

,\\/T\/\f/auﬂi//w i’%

For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

2016 2015
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt & TET FAT
Cash flows from investing RETHEEMNHRERE
activities
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BWENEE
plant and equipment B H 15 (3,394) (588)
Bank interest received BUIRITFI B 676 42
Proceeds from disposals of HEME  BERZH2
property, plant and equipment Fr1S k318 - 250
Net cash used in BRETHFFMANRESPRE
investing activities (2,718) (296)
Cash flows from financing METHELECHERE
activities
Increase in amount due from FEU — BB 2 BIE
a shareholder 0 - (16,948)
Decrease in amount due to JET — B FE IR AR B 2 5RIR
a non-controlling shareholder Vo - (126)
Net proceed from disposal of a HE—HRBARZ
subsidiary B 15 5K IB F 58 25 9) 974
Net proceeds from listing LA ARIE R - 114,834
Dividend paid to shareholders EMBRRZNZRE - (16,750)
Net cash (used in)/generated MEEH (A EEXZ
from financing activities R&BH (9) 81,984
Net increase in cash BeRASER/MEMEE
and cash equivalents 23,670 96,205
Cash and cash equivalents FNZHaeRAEEEY
at the beginning of the year 130,565 34,360
Cash and cash equivalents FRZASRBAEEFEEY
at the end of the year 154,235 130,565
Cash and cash equivalents FEeRBRARRINZ
as stated in the ReRB£EED
consolidated statement
of financial position 154,235 130,565
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these  BERIMIFERK ZEL A BTEHRE 2 48K 25

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

P

48

GENERAL INFORMATION

LC Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Cayman lIslands on 19 January 2015
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The Company’s registered office is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 21st Floor,
Wyndham Place, No. 44 Wyndham Street, Central,
Hong Kong.

The Company had its primary listing on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 8 September 2015 (the
“Listing”). Starcross Group Limited (“SGL”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and
holding 75% of the shares, is considered to be the
parent of the Company. The ultimate controlling party
of the Company is Mr. LEONG Hing Loong Rudoff (“Mr.
LEONG”), who is also the chairman of the Company.

The Company is an investment company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred hereafter as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in one-stop integrated
interior design solutions including design, fit out and
decoration as well as overall project management.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. All values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise stated.

REORGANISATION

In the preparation for the Listing, the Group underwent
series of corporate reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”),
as a result of which the Company became a holding
company of the subsidiaries comprising the Group. The
Reorganisation included the following principal steps:

()  On 10 November 2014, SGL was incorporated in
the BVI with limited liability. It is authorised to issue
a maximum of 50,000 shares of a single class
each with a par value of US$1.00. On the same
day, 75 shares and 25 shares were allotted and
issued to Mr. LEONG and Ms. CHEW Christina
Mooi Chong (“Ms. CHEW?”) at par.

LC Group Holdings Limited REi £ E=REFRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BT R M R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/T\

B BRI

For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

2.

REORGANISATION (Continued)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

On 19 January 2015, Mr. LEONG and Ms. CHEW
transferred their entire shareholding interest in
Crystal Sky Group Limited (“Crystal Sky”) to Smart
Builder Holdings Limited (“SBHL”) (as directed by
the Company) in consideration of the allotment and
issue of one share and one share by the Company
to SGL (as directed by Mr. LEONG and Ms.
CHEW), respectively, credited as fully-paid.

On 3 August 2015, Mr. LEONG and Ms. CHEW
transferred their entire shareholding interest in LCL
Architects Limited (“LCL Architects”) to SBHL (as
directed by the Company) in consideration of the
allotment and issue of one share and one share by
the Company to SGL (as directed by Mr. LEONG
and Ms. CHEW), respectively, credited as fully-
paid;

On 3 August 2015, Mr. LEONG and Ms. CHEW
transferred their entire shareholding interest in LCL
China Limited (“LCL China”) to SBHL (as directed
by the Company) in consideration of the allotment
and issue of one share and one share by the
Company to SGL (as directed by Mr. LEONG and
Ms. CHEW), respectively, credited as fully-paid;

On 3 August 2015, Mr. LEONG and Ms. CHEW
transferred their entire shareholding interest in LCL
Construction Limited (“LCL Construction”) to SBHL
(as directed by the Company) in consideration of
the allotment and issue of nine shares and one
share by the Company to SGL (as directed by Mr.
LEONG and Ms. CHEW), respectively, credited as
fully-paid and the crediting as fully paid at par the
one nil-paid share in issue and registered in the
name of SGL;

On 3 August 2015, Mr. LEONG transferred his
entire shareholding interest in LCL Deco Limited
(“LCL Deco”) to SBHL (as directed by the
Company) in consideration of the allotment and
issue of one share by the Company to SGL (as
directed by Mr. LEONG) credited as fully-paid;

2, Ef(#®)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

RZE—RAF—A+NLH 2%
A KB 4 85 1 % R Crystal
Sky Group Limited ([ Crystal
Sky 1) #) 2 & % # T Smart Builder
Holdings Limited ([SBHLJ) (&4
RAIMIET)  MIEARE AR
A5 Bl BB R BT — R — R A
R AR R IRG FSGL (&
2EERBLZITHER) °

RZE—RAFNA=ZH R4k
MEALZITEEESHMHEREE
MABRAR ([MEREER]) M
2 BB FSBHL (IR AN A A K #5
R MIEARE - ARQRHBIE
BRET M — AR A

B 2 B FSGL (38 R4 K
Hﬁzimam)

RZE—RENAR=H &4
Y E & 8 E % FERLCL China
Limited ([ LCL Chinal) #9%& 2B A%
# FSBHL (AR R MER)
MERNRE NAR D AR K&
BT R — AR AR
KZBH FSGLURREERAR
THIETR)

WRZE—RAFNA=ZH 3
%A M A E S RLCL
Construction Limited ([ LCL
Construction ]) #) & 2 X #& T
SBHL (32 KRR R H HE ) » M1
BRE - A2 A5D RIA KRBT
AEM—BARINAEBRERTZ
fRD FSGL (IR EERAXZLTH
ER)  BUASGLEAZE TSR
) — R ARBF RO IZEEART
BET

W-P-RENAZA REE
BEARESERARAR (12

=E®R]) 82 M TSBHL (3%
K’D\ETEI’HEU_’\) C MIERRE - &
NRAEE R BT -RARS A
B ZH FSGL(RR AR
?El/T\)
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

REORGANISATION (Continued)

P

50

(vii)

(viii)

On 3 August 2015, Mr. LEONG and Ms. CHEW
transferred their entire shareholding interest in LCL
Decoration Limited (“LCL Decoration”) to SBHL (as
directed by the Company) in consideration of the
allotment and issue of one share and one share by
the Company to SGL (as directed by Mr. LEONG
and Ms. CHEW), respectively, credited as fully-
paid;

On 3 August 2015, Mr. LEONG and Ms. CHEW
transferred their entire shareholding interest in
LCL Design Limited (“LCL Design”) to SBHL (as
directed by the Company) in consideration of the
allotment and issue of one share and one share by
the Company to SGL (as directed by Mr. LEONG
and Ms. CHEW), respectively, credited as fully-
paid;

On 3 August 2015, Mr. LEONG and Ms. CHEW
transferred their entire shareholding interest in
LCL Interior Limited (“LCL Interior”) to SBHL (as
directed by the Company) in consideration of the
allotment and issue of one share and one share by
the Company to SGL (as directed by Mr. LEONG
and Ms. CHEW), respectively, credited as fully-
paid; and

On 3 August 2015, Mr. LEONG and Ms. CHEW
transferred their entire shareholding interest in LCL
Limited (“LCL Ltd.”) to SBHL (as directed by the
Company) in consideration of the allotment and
issue of one share and one share by the Company
to SGL (as directed by Mr. LEONG and Ms.
CHEW), respectively, credited as fully-paid.

LC Group Holdings Limited REi £ E=REFRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BT R M R

2, EHf(#®|)

(vii)

(i)

(ix)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

B BRI

For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

REORGANISATION (Continued)

2.

(xi)

(xii)

On 4 August 2015, SBHL and Mr. LEONG entered
into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which SBHL agreed to transfer the entire issued
share capital of Crystal Sky at the consideration
of approximately HK$974,000 to Mr. LEONG.
The consideration for the transfer was determined
based on the net assets value of Crystal Sky
according to the management accounts of Crystal
Sky as at 31 July 2015. As the consideration for
the disposal of Crystal Sky was based on its net
asset value, the disposal of Crystal Sky did not
result in any gain or loss on the Group.

Upon completion of the Reorganisation on 4
August 2015, the Company became the holding
company of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared as if the Group had always been in
existence throughout both years presented, or since the
respective dates of incorporation or establishment of the
group companies, rather than from the date when the
Company became the holding company pursuant to the
Reorganisation.

2. EH(#®|)

(xi)

RZZE—-—RHF/\AMA - SBHL
HPEEIIEEHZE Bt
SBHL[E & M 2 % 4 & #%Crystal
SkyWy 2 E 2 EHATR A - REL
&R974,0008 T - BENRE IR
B&Crystal SkyR —_ £ —HFt A
—t+—HMNERRERBEEE
JFEE T o AR & Crystal Sky
WREDLKEEEFEETE &
i & Crystal Skyll # B K A& E
BRASE MRS -

xi) RZE—RAFN\AMNBTHKELR
B ARal AN ER ZZRA
AEEGEVBERRIIBEEAEER

EdlemEFES—BEFE (RAK
B~ A oy Bl EE A SZ 3R S B B AR —
BERFE)MGR  MIFEARFRES

MR BIER R

Al HHERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

B BRI

For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

52

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standands (“HKASs”) and
interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) regarding preparation of
financial statements and directors’ reports and
audits became effective for the Company for
the financial year ended 30 September 2016.
Further, the disclosure requirements set out in
the Listing Rules regarding annual consolidated
financial statements have been amended with
reference to the new CO and to streamline with
HKFRSs. Accordingly, the presentation and
disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended
30 September 2016 have been changed to
comply with these new requirements. Comparative
information in respect of the financial year ended
30 September 2015 are presented or disclosed
in these consolidated financial statements based
on the new requirements. Information previously
required to being discloses under the predecessor
CO or Listing Rules but not under the new CO or
amended Listing Rules are not disclosed in these
consolidated financial statements. A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of the reporting period as
further explained below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in
HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable for the asset
or liability.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

54

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities (including structured entities) controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to
give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

- the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

- potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

- rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

- any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need
to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders’ meetings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Merger accounting for common control
combination

The consolidated financial statements incorporates
the financial statement items of the combining
entities or business in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or
business are combined using the existing book
values from the controlling party’s perspective.
No amount is recognised with respect to goodwill
or any excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over its cost at the time of
common control combination, to the extent of the
contribution of the controlling party’s interest.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(d) Merger accounting for common control

56

(e)

combination (Continued)

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income include the results
of each of the combining entities or business
from the earliest date presented or since the date
when combining entities or business first came
under common control, where this is a shorter
period, regardless of the date of common control
combination.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between the combining
entities or business are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are eliminated but considered as an
impairment indicator of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of combining entities or
business have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Transaction costs, including professional fees,
registration fees, cost of furnishing information
to shareholders, costs or losses incurred in
combining operations of the previously separate
businesses, etc., incurred in relation to the
common control combination that is to be
accounted for by using merger accounting are
recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the entities
or business had been combined at the end of the
previous reporting period or when they first came
under common control, whichever is shorter.

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it (i) derecognises the assets (including any
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is
lost, (i) derecognises the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income
attributable to them), and (iii) recognises the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as
a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the
Group.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the
statement of financial position of the Company at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
board of directors that makes strategic decisions.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(h) Revenue recognition

58

(i)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following basis:

(i) Project for design, fit out and decoration
service income is recognised based on
the stage of completion of the contracts,
provided that the stage of contract
completion and the contract costs of the
contracting work can be measured reliably.
The stage of completion of a contract is
established by reference to the proportion
that contract costs incurred for work
performed to date bear to the estimated total
contract cost;

(i)  Design and/or decoration service income is
recognised upon services rendered; and

(i) Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis taking into account the
principal outstanding and the interest
applicable.

The Group’s policy for recognition of service
income from provision of design, fit out and
decoration services is set out in note 3()).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

1)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

20%
20%
25% — 30%

Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. The carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gain and loss on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract
in relation to provision of design, fit out and
decoration services can be estimated reliably,
revenue and costs are recognised by reference
to the stage of completion of the contract activity
at the end of the reporting period, as measured
based on the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date relative to
the estimated total contract costs, except where
this would not be representative of the stage of
completion. Variations in contract work, claims
and incentive payments are included to the extent
that the amount can be measured reliably and its
receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred
that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

60

1)

(k)

Construction contracts (Continued)
Where contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings, the surplus is shown as
amounts due from customers for contract work.
For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
shown as amounts due to customers for contract
work. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a liability, as
receipt in advances. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customers are
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under trade receivables.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of transactions.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measures in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise except for:

o Exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under
construction for future productive use, which
are included in the cost of those assets
when they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs on those foreign currency
borrowings;

° Exchange differences on transactions
entered into in order to hedge certain foreign
currency risks; and

° Exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on repayment of
the monetary items.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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62

U]

(m)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
“profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(m) Taxation (Continued)

3. EEEHHEGE)
(m) MIE (&)

NN

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of each of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(n)

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but as that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of each
reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Continued)
(p) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly
classified into loans and receivables. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. At the end
of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables
and cash and bank balances) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;
or

° the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such
as trade receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised
cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the differences between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Continued)
(p) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group
are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables,
accrued expenses and other payables) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3. ¥ESHBRKGE)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discount)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group continues to recognise the asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing of
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

70

(p)

(a)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than
in its entirety, the Group allocated the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognise, and the part it no
longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that no longer recognised
on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liabilities derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and in banks. Restricted
bank deposits are excluded from cash and cash
equivalents.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Employee benefits

(r)

U]

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(r) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share
options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to profit or loss
for the year under review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the
share option reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

®)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained
earnings within the equity section of the
consolidated statement of financial position, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they
are recognised as a liability.

Related parties

() A person or a closed member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group, if
that person:

(@) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(b)  has significant influence over the Group;
or

(c) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group.

3. ¥E®

(s)

t)

BH R (48)

B2
EEERRNZRBEREERS
W%#ﬂ%ﬁ%*ﬁTﬂﬁﬁ
wmAz —HBIDE  BERK
%KAt%h%ﬁ&%¢°%%
%%\E—EEL

R B 75

(i) MWEBNATAL: AlZZALTK
ZATZHAEREYRERKE
BN B A R

(@) %l sk 2k A 4% 4 AN &
;

b) HAEEEEAYE

) RAEBHIAEEL
NAEAIMEEE AR A

\
”

Annual Report 2016 3 73




e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

B BRI

For the year ended 30 September 2016

HZE2016F9H30H L F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t) Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(a)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i);

a person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

There is no new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations (the “new and revised HKFRSs”)
issued by the HKICPA applied by the Group for the first
time in the current year.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvement to HKFRS
2012-2014 Cycle'

ERAMITREETEEME
REER

AEERNAFELEERERHBEE
SR A R FTR] RSB FT LR -
Er] Rk ([# 5] REIE AT BB M
HELER) -

A S 3 4 1R 08 A S 51 2 A 4 1
oK A BB BT RS 5T BB B IS s
AR

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 7 (Amendments)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
HKFRS 11 (Amendments)
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 (Amendments)

HKFRS 16

Disclosure Initiative'
Disclosure Initiative®
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses®
Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation'
Agriculture: Bearer Plant!

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions?

Financial Instruments?

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations'

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Clarification to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers?

Leases®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
earlier application is permitted if only in conjunction with HKFRS
15.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010
to include requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition,
and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly
to include (a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and (b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair
value through other comprehensive income’ (“FVTOCI”)
measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
“economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 9 in the future may impact
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect until a detailed review has been completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

- Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

- Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

- Step 3: Determine the transaction price

- Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

- Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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4.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 apply prospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 in the future may have a material impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed
review.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on
how to account for the acquisition of a joint operation
that constitutes a business as defined in HKFRS 3
Business Combinations. Specifically, the amendments
state that the relevant principles on accounting for
business combinations in HKFRS 3 and other standards
(e.g. HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets regarding
impairment testing of a cash generating unit to which
goodwill on acquisition of a joint operation has been
allocated) should be applied. The same requirements
should be applied to the formation of a joint operation
if and only if an existing business is contributed to the
joint operation by one of the parties that participate in
the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards
for business combinations.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 apply prospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to HKFRS 11 will have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 was issued on 13 January 2016 and is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. HKFRS 16 replaces all existing lease
accounting requirements and represents a significant
change in the accounting and reporting of leases,
with more assets and liabilities to be reported on the
consolidated statement of financial position and a
different recognition of lease costs.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes leases and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Subject to limited exceptions for short-term
leases and low value assets, distinctions of operating
and finance leases are removed for lessee accounting,
and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for
all leases by lessees.

Application of HKFRS 16 will result in the Group’s
recognition of right-of-use assets and corresponding
liabilities in respect of many of the Group’s lease
arrangements.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKRFS
16 in the future may impact the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect until a detailed review
has been completed.
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4.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 7 require entities to provide
disclosure that enable users of consolidated financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes.

To satisfy such requirements, an entity shall disclose
(to the extent necessary) the changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities including changes from
financing cash flows, changes arising from obtaining or
losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses, the
effect of changes in foreign exchange rates, changes in
fair values and other changes.

Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities
for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities. In addition,
the disclosure requirement also applies to changes in
financial assets (for example, assets that hedge liabilities
arising from financing activities) if cash flows from those
financial assets were, or future cash flows will be,
included in cash flows from financing activities.

The amendments state that one way to fulfil the new
disclosure requirement is to provide reconciliation
between the opening and closing balances in the
consolidated statement of financial position for liabilities
arising from financing activities.

Finally, the amendments also state that changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities must be
disclosed separately from changes in other assets and
liabilities.

The amendments to HKAS 7 apply prospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

The Directors anticipate that the application of
amendments to HKAS 7 in the future may have
a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of amendments to
HKAS 7 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from
using a revenue-based depreciation method for items
of property, plant and equipment. The amendments
to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
revenue is not an appropriate basis for amortisation
of an intangible asset. This presumption can only be
rebutted in the following two limited circumstances:

(@ when the intangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue; or

(b)  when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the
Group uses the straight-line method for depreciation for
its property, plant and equipment.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

LC Group Holdings Limited REi £ E=REFRAF

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERAMITREETEREME
WEHER(|)

FREHENE1REES
Eﬁmwﬁmﬁﬁiﬁaﬁéﬁﬁﬂ

LRk

BB G ERE1I6% & J,tr*m
ROE BEMEEEEBEB RS
ENELE-BEGFHENRE 385JEZ1¢
RISl AT B EERE A E
HEEZAHEBRR - BRI ARIA

TREEREBERTHE :
(@) BPEEXRPARUBZAENE:
=%

(b) ﬂ?éﬂﬂﬁ%%fFi%/ﬁﬂ
MFERABEY @ -

§ 2 Wk

HEETHR T —<F—A— A%
2 18 B 1A 2 48 1 0 B SRR OB PR A I
BomE AREERERARLY
% BERREHESE -

EETEY ERULERAGIENNSE

165% & B /8 & 5T £ R 385k Z B 7T 5
%ﬁﬁ’ilz,ﬁ?éﬁﬂ%i&%%ﬁii
oh B2 488

B E




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fre MRt

For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

4.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to account for
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in its separate financial statements:

- At cost;

- In accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(or HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement for entities that have not yet
adopted HKFRS 9) or

- Using the equity method as described in HKAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The accounting option must be applied by category of
investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases
to be an investment entity, or becomes an investment
entity, it shall account for the change from the date
when the change in status occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are
consequential amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a
potential conflict with HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and to HKFRS 1 First time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The amendments to HKAS 27 apply prospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to HKAS 27 will have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
/ HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKAS 28:

The requirements on gains and losses resulting
from transactions between an entity and its
associate or joint venture have been amended
to relate only to assets that do not constitute a
business.

A new requirement has been introduced that gains
or losses from downstream transactions involving
assets that constitute a business between an
entity and its associate or joint venture must
be recognised in full in the investor’'s financial
statements.

A requirement has been added that an entity
needs to consider whether assets that are sold or
contributed in separate transactions constitute a
business and should be accounted for as a single
transaction.

Amendments to HKFRS 10:

An exception from the general requirement of full
gain or loss recognition has been introduced into
HKFRS 10 for the loss control of a subsidiary that
does not contain a business in a transaction with
an associate or a joint venture that is accounted
for using the equity method.

New guidance has been introduced requiring that
gains or losses resulting from those transactions
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains
and losses resulting from the remeasurement at
fair value of investments retained in any former
subsidiary that has become an associate or a
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method are recognised in the former parent’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint
venture.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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4.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific
guidance in HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies
an asset (or disposal group) from held for sale to held
for distribution to owners (or vice versa), or when
held-for-distribution accounting is discontinued. The
amendments apply prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional
guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is
continuing involvement in a transferred asset for
the purpose of the disclosures required in relation
to transferred assets and clarify that the offsetting
disclosures (introduced in the amendments to HKFRS
7 Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities issued in December 2011 and effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013) are not
explicitly required for all interim periods. However, the
disclosures may need to be included in condensed
interim financial statements to comply with HKAS 34
Interim Financial Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality
corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for
post-employment benefits should be issued in the same
currency as the benefits to be paid. These amendments
would result in the depth of the market for high quality
corporate bonds being assessed at currency level. The
amendments apply from the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented in the financial statements
in which the amendments are first applied. Any initial
adjustment arising should be recognised in retained
earnings at the beginning of that period.

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements
relating to information required by HKAS 34 that
is presented elsewhere within the interim financial
report but outside the interim financial statements.
The amendments require that such information be
incorporated by way of a cross reference from the
interim financial statements to the other part of the
interim financial report that is available to users on the
same terms and at the same time as the interim financial
statements.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
the said amendments to HKRFRSs will have a material
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The Group is in the process of assessing the other
potential impact of the above new and revised HKFRSs
upon initial application but is not yet in a position to
state whether the above new and revised HKFRS, will
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,

including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

5.

86

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Construction contracts revenue
recognition

The Group recognises contract revenue and profit
of a construction contract in relation to provision
of design, fit out and decoration services and
design and decoration services according to the
management’s estimation of the total outcome
of the contract as well as the percentage of
completion of construction works. Notwithstanding
that the management reviews and revises the
estimates of both contract revenue and costs
for the construction contract as the contract
progresses, the actual outcome of the contract in
terms of its total revenue and costs may be higher
or lower than the estimates and this will affect the
revenue and profit recognised.

Impairment of trade receivables

The aging debt profile of trade debtors is reviewed
on a regular basis to ensure that the trade
receivables balances are collectable and follow
up actions are promptly carried out if the agreed
credit periods have been exceeded. However,
from time to time, the Group may experience
delays in collection. Where recoverability of
trade receivables balance are called into doubts,
specific provisions for bad and doubtful debts are
made based on credit status of the customers,
the aging analysis of the trade receivables
balances and write-off history. Certain receivables
may be initially identified as collectible, yet
subsequently become uncollectible and result in
a subsequent write-off of the related receivable
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. Changes in
the collectability of trade receivables for which
provisions are not made could affect the results of
operations of the Group.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates
the useful lives of property, plant and equipment
to determine the amount of depreciation expenses
to be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at
the time the asset is acquired based on historical
experience, the expected usage, wear and tear
of the assets, and technical obsolescence arising
from changes in the market demands or service
output of the assets. The Group also performs
annual reviews on whether the assumptions made
on useful lives continue to be valid.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
Hong Kong. Significant judgement is required
in determining the worldwide provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL

(@) Categories of financial instruments

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. EMITARBFEREE
(a) €EMIRZEE

As at 30 September

88

BhB=+H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET
Financial assets: EMEE :
Loan and receivables (including & 2 & & g 3k 18
cash and bank balances) (BiER:® &fﬁﬂ k)
- Trade receivables — & 5 WA 10,276 29,399
— Deposits and other receivables —32 4 & H #h & g I8 3,009 1,666
— Cash and bank balances - B RIETE 154,235 130,565
As at 30 September
BAB=+H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FiE T
Financial liabilities: SRMAR:
Amortised cost B SH R
— Trade payables —E ZEMNFIE 6,629 15,067
- Accrued expenses and other  — BT S & B 4th B~ k1B
payables 1,448 4,534

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including interest rate
risk and foreign currency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
As at 30 September 2016 and 2015, the
Group did not hold any assets and liabilities
which are exposed to significant interest risk.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group has certain portion of bank
balances and cash denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency
of the entities to which they related. The
Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the balance sheet date to major
currency risk:

6. EMIARTFERBETE (&)
(b) FAFSEPREE B R BR ()

4% W PR ()

(i) SMER S
REBERA —E L PlH &R A
HEAERINEERAINZE
BRIRITHEBREIRE - A%
[ B Al I 8 5 O IR -
Aif - EIRE R EEINER
B MR HREE EE
BERINE R -

TREIINEE B AREE R
EEHHEEE MHEAAE’]Eil‘% :

Liabilities Assets
&8 &

As at 30 September As at 30 September

BhA=+H BWhA=+H
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
F&x THET FET FHET

Australian Dollars Bt (MRt ])

(*AUS") - - 211 3,454
Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARBTARE]D - - 78 1,411
Singapore Dollars 21 IN3 TT

(“SGD”) ([ T]) - - 24 1,898

The foreign currency sensitivity analysis The
Group is mainly exposed to the effects of
fluctuation in AUS, RMB and SGD.

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% (2015: 5%) increase and
decrease in HK$ against AUS, RMB and SGD.
5% (2015: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used
in the current year when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represent management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items. If HK$
strengthen 5% against AUS, RMB and SGD
whiles a positive number below indicates an
increase in profit, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit as those referred
to in the table below:

AEEETZEHRT AR
BRI TR BT E

TR AEEHBITH
BIT - AR K i T
MERAIE% (ZF—RHEF
5% ) H)BURAJE 518 © 6% (=
E—HF 5% RRAFE
mMEEBEEEABRNILRSE
SN [ e ﬁﬁﬁﬁ!ﬁ( Z‘i&i%ﬂ_’\
B E B O E BIEAEE
B R T - !&ﬁ&ﬁ%%’fﬁ@
BAREENIIMNESENER
HE - WBETERT AR
W X N3 T EFH5% 0 i
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 6. £ TERIZREIGTE (1)
RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MERMREEERERBE (§)
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) 4% & B% (#)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) SMER R ()
The foreign currency sensitivity analysis INESBURRE DT

Impact of AUS
b b0k A
For the year ended
30 September
BEANA=THLEE

2016 2015

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FHET FAT

Sensitivity rate B R 5% 5%
Profit or loss i N 3K B 18 11 173

Impact of RMB
ARBHRE
For the year ended
30 September
BEALA=THLEFE

2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TFTHET FET
Sensitivity rate B R 5% 5%
Profit or loss i M) 3 & 18 4 71
Impact of SGD
MmgTH R E
For the year ended
30 September
BEEALA=1THLEE
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET FHET
Sensitivity rate 5 5% 5%
Profit or loss i M 3k B 18 1 95
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Kr e B 7% R M R

For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 6. €MTARSERRERE () \

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

(b) FAFSEPREE B R BR ()

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to bank deposits, trade and other receivables.
In order to minimise the credit risk, management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis and follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the management
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is adequately
managed and mitigated.

The Group had certain concentration of credit
risk as 33.3% of the total trade receivables of the
Group were due from the largest customer and
89.1% of the total trade receivables of the Group
were due from five largest customers as at 30
September 2016 (30 September 2015: 22.9% and
96.7% respectively). Management considered the
credit risk is limited since the Group trades only
with customers with an appropriate credit history
and good reputation. The management monitored
the financial background and creditability of
those debtors on an ongoing basis. In addition,
the credit risks on liquid funds including bank
deposit and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

& & W B3

REBERERR  AKEEH 2
RAEERR (AR5 H FRiE
BITEEMYANEEERT R
K)o BERE MBI R FTH A
HEMRETMEELIREE -

AEBZEERRERRAIRT
TR BHhEMERKIE B
REERREREHE BEED
HIEEERR HESERRAE
SRk WRIRETSRE B
HMEH - WI BEEBEREE
BEMREZZZEHBNAKE
TR R/ TAINKE NS R
ERDHBEEBR BLEME -
EEAREAEENGEERARTE
D EEMER -

RZE-—R"FLA=+H &%
BEFERTHNEERREF -
EAGARFPEKZEZASE
ERE 5 EWNHNENIS% : B
FAEAEFPHNERRERER
SEWFRIENEI1% (T — &
FAAZ=Z+TH: DR AE29%K
96.7%) - EREERABEERRSE
R-EAEAEBREFELHK
BERUNEFERS -BEE
SEETMZEBHRANTBHEES
REE- I RBES (BER
TEFRMRITESR) NEERR
NER EARXZHFHEEE
RIFHIERT ©
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/ 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL

6. EMIARTFERBETE (&)
(b) FAFSEPREE B R BR ()

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s liquidity risk management includes
maintaining flexibility by keeping sufficient cash
and cash equivalents generated from operations.
The Company regularly reviews its major funding
positions to ensure that it has adequate financial
resources in meeting its financial obligations.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivatives financial
liabilities which are included in the maturity
analysis provided internally to the key management
personnel for the purpose of managing liquidity
risk. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the table
reflects the undiscounted cash flows of financial

liabilities based on the earliest date on which the

pid kg 41
ZXEIEEE//‘L@Jé%H/\AHT 1%
FEEE EETE%&HEEF‘
FxRERekRReRESE
ZIRIN/N 7EEH%TZEIE§§
AR EREBEREM NETY
&R -

TRHAIIAKEFTESHEE
W TEHEEA  XERAR
EEmB)E ¢ R MR EL e H
TEREBRASNIHONF -
MIETESMBEMNS - &%&xA
RENAEEAHEKRKEERR
WExFHHANERBEZARITE

Eﬁ%/\bi

ZRBREMNBEEAE

Group can be required to pay. The tables include WEHRE o
both interest and principal cash flows.
Weighted
average
effective Total Total
interest Within Over undiscounted carrying
rate 1 year 1year cash flows amount
KB
miEFsy RenE IR E
ER7=® -£8 —-Fit #8 #E
% HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
% TET TET TET TET
As at 30 September 2016 RIE-REAR=+A
Non-derivative financial FiTEEMAR
liabilities
Trade payables Z5ERTE - 6,629 - 6,629 6,629
Accrued expenses and other BRI REMENTE
payables - 1,448 - 1,448 1,448
- 8,077 - 8,077 8,077
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 6. €MTARSERRERE () \

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MERMREEERERBE (§)
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) mENE & ()

Weighted
average
effective Total Total
interest Within Over undiscounted carrying
rate 1 year Tyear  cash flows amount
REEH
MmEFH Beme REE
ERFZ -FR —FNE ik et
% HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
% FEL FEL TR TR
As at 30 September 2015 RZE-EEAA=TA
Non-derivative financial FIESMAR
liabilities
Trade payables ZORNFE - 15,067 - 15,067 15,067
Accrued expenses and other AT REMERFHE
payables - 4,534 - 4,534 4,534
19,601 - 19,601 19,601
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (c) EMIARZAFHE

The fair values of financial assets and financial TREERCREBBEZATER

liabilities are determined as follows: ATHAEE :

(i)  the fair values of financial assets and financial iy EBEEEERRGEHELE
liabilities with standard terms and conditions BRBATMSEEC S RMERE
and traded in active liquid markets are rematEsrTED B2
determined with reference to quoted market EZHBm5EABRELE
bid and ask prices respectively; and EE &

(i)  the fair values of other financial assets (if) ﬁ{ﬁ(ﬁ%ﬂéé&(ﬁ%ﬁ%{iz
and financial liabilities are determined in NREEDERTBEBEE RS
accordance with generally accepted pricing MIRBREZBRANTEEBR
models based on discounted cash flow NETE ©
analysis.

The carrying amount of other financial assets and HRZE® %ﬂIﬂZ$H 58 B

liabilities carried at amortised cost, approximate CREEA ) HORBE A ARSI AR 2 &

their respective fair values due to the relatively theRmEERAERAENEES
short-term nature of those financial instrument. BAFERSE -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

P

94

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

For financial reporting purpose, fair value
measurement are categorised into Level 1, 2
and 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the input to the fair value
measurements in its entirety.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels
1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value
is observable:

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or liabilities;

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the assets or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

No analysis is disclosed since the Group has
no financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value at the
end of the reporting period.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the
year.

LC Group Holdings Limited REi £ E=REFRAF
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 6. €MTARSERRERE () \

(d) Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to fund
its construction business, provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

There was no change in the Group’s approach to
capital management during the year.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision-makers, review the Group’s internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. The Group focuses on provision of design, fit
out and decoration services during the year. Information
reported to the chief operating decision marker, for
the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment, focuses on the operating results of
the Group as a whole as the Group’s resources are
integrated and no discrete operating segment financial
information is available. Accordingly, no operating
segment information is presented.

A brief description of each of our services is as follows:
Design service conceptual design of the interior
space

coordinate, manage and
arrange for fit out works to be
subcontracted

accessorising of the interior
space

Fit out service

Decoration service

(d) BxEBERER
AEEBEAERE ZHERERR
BAKEFELLENREN KM
REREEBRHEES  RRRR
HEH REMHNZABERHE
M REFRBELRGEE N
PRAKE AR o

AEBREGEEHEZLERE
R NEREEKFESH
BE 75 2R O B 1= i 3R (] e £ AR Y
BRMREERNEZ R T2 ZH
BGFE  WREEER RN E
EEEAEBIELFE -

WAER  AEENERERS
=R -

BakasBEH
AARRTEFERIEMEERRE
EEHASENRITRSE  AFEE
BRAEBER - REA AKEET
RIEHRZGF KERKHGRE - BE
BREERRAFBZENAEIREE
RREMENER  DERIHFAE
EHEREEXE AR/AKENE
REBES BAEBABNBELLE
DEHZHBER HEREREZ2EE
D EBE R} o

EERBOBEFHAFHIIET ¢
R AR ENZER AR RERS

KERE wE#E - BERTHRT
DENEKETEE

K # R 15 EAEEMERHER
tE
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

/ 7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. @RS EBEFHE (8)

(Continued)
Revenue from major services TERBIRE

The Group’s revenue from its major services during the REBNFANTERBWZREOT :
year is as follows:

For the year ended
30 September
BENA=THLFE

2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET FET
Design and/or decoration At RS A AR TS A
service income 27,732 25,220
Design, fit out and decoration REr - B REMRIEUA
service income 88,289 134,307
116,021 159,527
Geographical information RbhEBEUER#ZEH
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, REFBEEWHUNRELE PEAR
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Singapore. HAMB ([ ]) R -
The Group’s geographical segments are classified AEERBEFPUES DMEDS -
according to the location of customers. There are three EZAUNEFAEROMIES I - R
customer-based geographical segments. Segment FARBINEELH D E W (IRE P
revenue from external customers by the location of VEED)WAT
customer during the year is as follows:
Revenue from external customers REIIBEEHERR

For the year ended
30 September
BEALA=THL=EE

2016 2015

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FTETT FHET

Hong Kong BB 92,149 133,759
PRC s 22,662 25,768
Singapore N 1,210 -
116,021 159,527
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7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

The Group’s geographical segments are also classified
by the location of assets, information about its non-
current assets by geographical location are detailed
below:

Non-current assets

Wiz B 5 EBEE (&)
iR 4Rt W H ()

A E MR IR A A AR E 815 52
SH - ARBERDEENAEE R
(iR B 8D FiEmT -
FRDAE

As at 30 September

BhA=+H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx FAT
Hong Kong BB 3,878 1,775
Information about major customers FREEEFRMEH

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group
are as follows:

AR 4 JEE 4 7 9 48 R 26 11 0% 20
BRI

For the year ended
30 September
BEAA=THLEEE

2016 2015

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

T#ET FAT

Customer A EFA 36,340 -
Customer B =FB 25,382 32,668
Customer C (¥ EPC(*) - 34,966
Customer D =FD 23,015 25,275
Customer E (*) EFE(™) - 23,958
Customer F (¥ ZEF(*) - 18,207

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group for the respective year.

HRRRERNEERBEE 2@ RE
#B10% °
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/ 8. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER GAINS 8. HkaSREMEF

For the year ended
30 September
BEAA=THLEEE

2016 2015
HK$'000  HK$ 000
TFHET FET
Other revenue Httg 2
Bank interest income H|ITH B WA 833 61
Other operating income H b a8 = WA 795 626
Sundry income HMIEUA 130 80
1,758 767
Other gains HthzF
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE -
plant and equipment B K2 B 7 - 250
Net exchange gain [& 5 Uk 25 %58 21 -
21 250
Total X ] 1,779 1,017
9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRRMAF
For the year ended
30 September
BEAA=THLEE
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET FHET
Profit before taxation has been BRI TR T 5
arrived at after charging: FIRBER
Directors’ emoluments (Note 11) EF5Me (MFE11) 6,043 5,319
Salaries, wages and other e ITENEAMEF
benefits (excluding directors’ (TEEEEH2)
emoluments) 8,150 7,571
Pension scheme contributions RIS FTEIHE R
(excluding directors’ emoluments) (T"BRIEEEME) 255 237
8,405 7,808
Auditors’ remuneration 1% &6 B & 800 800
Bad debts written off (Note 16) ZARMEE (FY5E16) 162 520
Depreciation of property, M- WERERETE
plant and equipment (Note 15) (BfsE15) 1,291 1,643
Minimum lease payments under EARREmMcEEHE
operating leases in respect of K & IR
office premises 2,801 2,692
Net exchange loss b 5 18 K %58 - 1,382
Initial public offering expenses BRAAAZEERX
(included in administrative (GT AT S)
expenses) - 14,819
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10. TAXATION 10. IR1E8
For the year ended
30 September
BEAA=1+HLEE
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TFHET FHET
Current tax: EVHARS 1A -
Hong Kong BB
Provision for the year F NG 4,260 6,986
Over-provision in previous year T FEEBERE (162) (2,883)
Current tax expense BV EAF 18 M 2 4,098 4,103
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate EBNEHIORBEFANZ AT ETH
of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable i M IE16.5% (ZZE—HF : 16.5%) K
profits for the year. T = AE R4 o

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI during

the year.

No deferred tax has been provided for as there were no

material differences.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the profit before taxation per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

Ny
RPN REE Qfg R

REBRABEES

FEFL IR A -

FAMSHRAX A RES
ﬁﬁ’iﬁ&ﬁ?}%?% 8 5 1 B

kﬂ>

?.5‘_4&
uii]

1]

\\\/

S

REREHER %%kﬁi%ﬁ’]%ﬁﬁ@

BE M

WIERIFTISTR

HRUEBERER AT EFRE

o A H

’
5

E)I
A

ﬁ

For the year ended

30 September

BENAZ=THLEE

2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET FHET
Profit before taxation B B B S 28,279 25,053
Tax expense at rates applicable % E AR AR RAE &R R A
to profits in the jurisdiction ZMEGFENBIEMAY
concerned 4,666 4,134
Tax effect of income not taxable AR ARNT S22
for tax purpose (155) (51)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A 1% 58 X B FR 15 52 2
for tax purpose 71 2,517
Tax effect of temporary differences  E IS Z MR T E (228) 191
Tax effect of tax losses not ﬂiﬁ@ Zfﬁlﬁ)ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬁ‘%%g
recognised 127 195
Tax loss utilised EFRZHIAEE (221) -
Over-provision in previous year T EEERE (162) (2,883)
Income tax expense for FANMBHAY
the year 4,098 4,103
As at 30 September 2016, the Group has estimated tax RZE—RFLA=ZTH XTEEHE
losses arising of approximately HK$1,515,000 (2015: B A 2 fhEH IR B3 18 491,515,000 7T
approximately HK$2,573,000). Tax losses arising in (—Z —F 4 : 2,573,000 70) - A&

Hong Kong are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the

losses arose.
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
EHZE2016F9A30B L FE
11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 1. EEM&
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the BE-_Z-RER-_ZE—HFNA
Directors during the years ended 30 September 2016 E-i— BIEFE BN ENESEHH
and 2015 are as follows: SFEBWOT
For the year ended 30 September 2016 BE_Z—RENA=THLEE
Salaries,
allowances,
bonuses and Pension
benefit in scheme Total
Fees kind contributions remuneration
e
2R TR i3 3
e EDiaf AEER HewE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTERT FTET FTET FET
Executive directors RITES
Mr. LEONG A - 2,119 18 2,137
Ms. CHEW 2+
(Chief Executive Officer) (ThRB%) - 2,146 18 2,164
Mr. SHIH Steven Chun Ning HIRE 5 & - 1,004 18 1,022
Independent non-executive BUERTER
directors
Mr. TANG Hamilton Ty FhEEE 240 - - 240
Mr. LEE Frank King-ting FWALE 240 - - 240
Mr. HO Hin Yip ATERE 240 - - 240
720 5,269 54 6,043
For the year ended 30 September 2015 BE_ZE—IAFNA=THLEE
Salaries,
allowances,
bonuses and Pension
benefit in scheme Total
Fees &nd contributions  remuneration
ik
omE MR R4S
e :*:Waa Fl sTEIf R AL
HK$'\OOﬁO HK$’\0070 HK$’\OOﬁO HK$’\0070
TET FTET FTET TET
Executive directors RITESE
Mr. LEONG (Note (a)) R5H (M) - 2,09 18 2,113
Ms. CHEW (Note (b)) A+ (I‘ﬁ&‘(t?) - 2,138 18 2,156
Mr. SHIH Steven Chun Ning (Note (b)) 1R % 5 4 (KI5 (b)) - 940 14 954
Independent non-executive BiuksTES
directors ‘
Mr. TANG Hamilton Ty (Note (c)) B () 32 - - 32
Mr. LEE Frank King-ting (Note (c)) FHAR KA (B () 32 - - 32
Mr. HO Hin Yip (Note (c)) 147 % 5% & (M 7E(c) 32 - - 32
96 5173 50 5,319
Notes i 5E
(@  Mr. LEONG inted as director of the C 19 @ REEAR-_Z-AE-ATNHEZEA
° Jarnuary 2015Waansdig-p§£igna?§d as exaoutive gireg‘[rgrpggyzfgpril APREFUN_FT-HAFMA-+HA
2015. AEARBITES
) ) i i (b) A+t EEiRELER T —AFNA
) Grcaute directors of the Gompany on 24 Aprl 3016, ST AR AKAARITES -
(©) Mr. TANG Hamilton Ty, Mr. LEE Frank King-ti d Mr. HO Hi () ERBEBRLE FTMRELERMATELEER
¢ Yirp were ap%rgiln%% ays inrdependgi? nolrige;xlerl%t?ye dirrectors g:‘ E;ﬁfﬁgﬁﬂ TZRAEZIRARFE
the Company on 13 August 2015. MIFHITES -
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

11.

12.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
During the years ended 30 September 2016 and 2015,
no emolument was paid by the Group to the Directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

There were no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
years ended 30 September 2016 and 2015.

EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid employees of the Group for the
year ended 30 September 2016 included three (2015:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are
disclosed above. The remuneration of the five highest
paid individuals are analysed as follows:

11.

12.

EFMS ()
RBE-F—AER-F—AFNA
SHALSE AEEHEAEES
NHETME  FAREEMALEE
B RS EEMALEE N R R
ERKREBIRHE -

RBE-_Z-A"FER-_FT—RFNA
SHRLEFE YBEEERELCAL
BRELRBEREREAME

ERMeRIBESHFAL

IggEEHAL
AEBBE_T-R"FAA=THIL
FEZEZRSFALTEBHE=2(=ZF
—REEZREF WEZFHFR
TREXBEE REERSHALZH
Biotran T

For the year ended
30 September
BEARA=THLFEE

2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

T#xT FAT

Directors =l 5,323 5,223
Non-directors FEER 2,118 1,815
7,441 7,038

Details of the remuneration of the above non-directors,
highest paid employees during the years ended 30
September 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

BE _T-RNFR-_ZFT-—HFNA
STHIEFE FlFEERSHE
BZMEFFBMT

For the year ended
30 September
BEARA=THLEE

2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TFHET FAET
Salaries, allowances and bonuses e BB RIEAT 2,082 1,779
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIME R 36 36
2,118 1,815
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/ 12. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 12. EEM&eRABEEHFALT

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL (Continued) ($8)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued) TEEsHAL ()

The number of these non-directors, highest paid MeBTi@aENHERAFESERSH
employees where remuneration fell within the following, BEZ AEBWT :

and is as follows:

Number of individuals
A
For the year ended
30 September
BEANA=THLEE

2016 2015
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ 7t £2,000,000/% 7T 1 -
2 2
Senior Management of the Group TEECEREEE
The remuneration of the senior management (other than ALH %%&%ﬂ% (TERBES)2H
directors) of the Group are within the following band: B R T EE

Number of individuals
AS
For the year ended
30 September
gFAA=THLEE

2016 2015
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %£1,000,0007% JT 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/%& 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 1 -

S 3
During the years ended 30 September 2016 and 2015, REZE_ZT-—R"EFEZFT—HFNA
no emolument was paid by the Group to non-directors, ZTHREFE AEEHRERWTIEE
highest paid employees and senior management ErEnpEEREREBEREZNE
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group e FAREEMARNEERS
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the Mol FEMARNEBNEE  H1EAR
non-directors, highest paid employees and senior KEBBHABE REE=-_Z—XF
management waived or agreed to waive any emolument FZE—RAFNAA=ZTHLEE I
during the years ended 30 September 2016 and 2015. EUVIEE EaFEERSRER
EHEXREREEMRENE -
13. DIVIDENDS 13. R

The Directors do not propose any payment of final EETERBENEE-_Z—XF N
dividend for the year ended 30 September 2016 (2015: A=Z+THRLEFEMNEMRBARE
Nil). (ZE—RF E]E) -
Prior to the Reorganisation, the Company’s subsidiaries TEHZA ARXATHNEB AT RE
had declared the interim dividends in aggregate amounts E-E—FHFEAA=ZTRHIFTEEM
of HK$53,850,000 to their shareholders during the year HIRHE Sk B AR B 42 853,850,000
ended 30 September 2015. HK$37,100,000 out of the BT o 53,850,000 T B B -
HK$53,850,000 was paid to the shareholders before 37,100,000 t 2 A L 2 AR~ F
the Listing and the remaining amount was paid to the R M TeECRN LM 2Bk
shareholders after the Listing. FR&ER o
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#HE20165F9A30H L FE

13. DIVIDENDS (Continued)

13. BIx B (#)

The subsidiaries had declared dividends to their
shareholders as follows:

During the year ended 30 September 2015, LCL
Interior, a wholly-owned subsidiary, declared and
settled an interim dividend of HK$35 per share and
declared and paid an interim dividend of HK$14 per
share to its shareholders, totalling HK$7,000,000 and
HK$2,800,000 on 30 January 2015 and 26 May 2015,
respectively.

During the year ended 30 September 2015, LCL
Construction, a wholly-owned subsidiary, declared and
settled an interim dividend of HK$62.5 per share and
declared and paid an interim dividend of HK$22 per
share to its shareholders, totalling HK$12,500,000 and
HK$4,400,000 on 30 January 2015 and 26 May 2015,
respectively.

During the year ended 30 September 2015, LCL
Architects, a wholly-owned subsidiary, declared and
paid an interim dividend of HK$450,000 per share to its
shareholders, totalling HK$1,350,000 on 26 May 2015.

During the year ended 30 September 2015, LCL
China, a wholly-owned subsidiary, declared and
settled an interim dividend of HK$460 per share and
declared and paid an interim dividend of HK$590 per
share to its shareholders, totalling HK$4,600,000 and
HK$5,900,000 on 30 January 2015 and 26 May 2015,
respectively.

During the year ended 30 September 2015, LCL
Design, a wholly-owned subsidiary, declared and
settled an interim dividend of HK$25 per share and
declared and paid an interim dividend of HK$8 per
share to its shareholders, totalling HK$5,000,000 and
HK$1,600,000 on 30 January 2015 and 26 May 2015,
respectively.

During the year ended 30 September 2015, LCL
Decoration, a wholly-owned subsidiary, declared and
settled an interim dividend of HK$80,000 per share to
its shareholders, totalling HK$8,000,000 on 30 January
2015.

During the year ended 30 September 2015, LCL Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary, declared and paid an interim
dividend of HK$7,000 per share to its shareholders,
totalling HK$700,000 on 26 May 2015.

MEAREMKEE 2RRE KA TR
=

HE-_Z-—AEhLA= +E¢¢F
LCL Interlor(—FﬁiéﬁﬁJ% al) o Al
RZE—RF—A=+HEZZ—H
Eﬂﬂ_"f—/\aﬁEHX% /)f?&,u/ﬁ
d HR AR B & A%3578 T A & B R &K
PR AR B AR 1478 gt (A $£7,000,000
76 7T 122,800,000/ 7T) ©

HE-_ZT—AFALAZTBHLFE"
LCL Construction (—fEl &2 & W E A
MR —E—RF—A=+Hk=
Z-—hHERA-_+NHRAEKRKEEIK
LeEEF B FRE25FTUANRE
& & /EEﬁ'EF'/HHH B & k22 7E(|:| PAN
12,500,0005 7T 24,400,000/ 7T) °

HE-_Z—AFAA=ZTBEILEE"
ng& SRl (—FE2EKM B AR
—hEFHRAZ -i—/‘\EIﬁEi\Hxﬁi*
JE&J&HEPH;@H& IR 450,000% 7T (&
$£1,350,0008 7T) °

HE-_ZT—HAFNA=THILFE"
LCL China(—fMZ2&WEB 2 7)) % 3%
_;*£¢*HE+E&:?*£¢
FA-+NEBERAERREREEES
HiR% B & M460%8 T A R E R KR A
HIR% B & AR5907% 7T (A #£4,600,000/%8
7€ 15,900,000/ 7T)

Hze_Z—RAFNA=THILFE"
LCL Design(—fE 2 &K E 2R 7)) 5 5l
R-_E—RF—A=+BAK-_ZE—F
FREA-TAHRAERES RS
FRER RS B 25 T A R B R MK
/hHR % B = %8 o (& 5,000,000/
7t 1,600,000/ 7T) °

HE-_ZT-—AFAA=Z1THLEE"
LCL Decoration (—fEI 2 & W B A 7))
R-_E—RAHF—A=ZTHREREE

%

n> L]

TR Bk A A BA AR B lHX8O 000/ 7t (&
#£8,000,0005& 7T) °
HE-_Z—AFHAA=FTBILLtEE"
LCL Ltd (—Fﬁi BB AR R _F
—HFEFRA-+tAHAERESTIK

FOIR 5 R B AR B AR 7,000 T (& £
700,000/ L) °
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#HZE20164F9A30H L F &

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. SEREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the HE_Z—XXFNLA=+tHLEFEZ
year ended 30 September 2016 is based on the profit FRERBRMIZERARRES ARE

15 F R T 4924,181,0008 T (= F
— F 121,255,000 T) RO BEITE
IR 2 hkE 158 4500,000,0000% (=
T — R4 :382,877,0000%) 5T & -

for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$24,181,000 (2015: HK$21,255,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue of approximately 500,000,000 (2015:
382,877,000).

HRBE-_ZT-R"EFR_ZF-—AFN
A=ZTRLEFESELRBEEHSE
B BMEFE cSREBERN HE
BREXENER -

15. V¥ BERRME

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 30
September 2016 and 2015 were the same as the basic
earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive
ordinary shares in existence during the years.

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture
Office and Motor
equipment fixtures vehicles Total
RER
0 4 2% O BERE HEE -1
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
THET THT THT FTHET
Cost: BE:
As at 1 October 2014 R-E—NF+A—H 2,044 55 6,733 8,832
Additions NE 79 - 509 588
Disposals & - - (1,583) (1,583)
As at 30 September 2015 R-E—RFNA=1+H
and 1 October 2015 k=—E-hFt+A—H 2,123 55 5,659 7,837
Additions NE 64 - 3,330 3,394
As at 30 September 2016 RZE-R"EAB=+H 2,187 55 8,989 11,231
Accumulated depreciation: B E :
As at 1 October 2014 R-E—N&+A—H 1,545 55 4,402 6,002
Charge for the year FAXH 281 - 1,362 1,643
Written back on disposals Rl ERED - - (1,583) (1,583)
As at 30 September 2015 R-E—RFNA=1+H
and 1 October 2015 “ET-hFT+A—H 1,826 55 4,181 6,062
Charge for the year FAXI 197 - 1,094 1,291
As at 30 September 2016 RZE-R"EAB=+H 2,023 55 5,275 7,353
Net book value: IR E :
At 30 September 2016 RZE-RENA=1H 164 - 3,714 3,878
At 30 September 2015 “E-hFNAZ=TH 297 - 1,478 1,775
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16. TRADE RECEIVABLES 16. BSEWKFHIE
As at 30 September
BWhA=+H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FET
Trade receivables 2 5 e I8 10,276 29,399

The Group’s credit term with its customers is, in
general, 7 to 45 days. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.

The aging analysis of the trade receivables, based on

AEBEETEEFPNERAM—RATE
45K o 7K 5 8 B AR 12 I R (E R B UK
R RREEETNENBNGEH -

REZAHE2IINE 5 EEHK

TH ) B

the invoice date, are as follows: a2 ip UM
As at 30 September
BAR=+H
2016 2015
HK$'000  HK$ 000
FHET FAET
Current to 30 days BVERZ=30K 1,702 23,470
31 - 60 days 31—60X 2,744 3,019
61 — 90 days —90K 789 47
Over 90 days 90K + 5,041 2,863
10,276 29,399
Movement in the impairment loss of trade receivables, is BoREWFIBE 2 REBEESHNT
as follow:
As at 30 September
BAA=+H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET FAT
Balance at the beginning of the year F #] 4% - -
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 & Ut & Iﬁ})ﬁiﬁ)ﬁﬂé 162 520
Amount written off as uncollectible B2 ilEH 7~ ] U 21 3R I8 (162) (520)
Balance at the end of the year FRER - -

Annual Report 2016 £ 105

NN




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

B BRI

For the year ended 30 September 2016
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16.

106

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Impaired trade receivables

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality
of the trade receivables from the date credit was
initially granted up to the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, the Directors believe that there is no further
credit provision required in excess of the impairment of
trade receivables.

The Group’s policy for impairment loss on trade
receivables is based on an evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of the receivables which requires the
use of judgment and estimates. Provisions are applied
to the receivables when there are events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The management closely reviews the trade
receivables balances and any overdue balances on
an ongoing basis and assessments are made by the
management on the collectability of overdue balances.

Past due but not impaired

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balances
are debts with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$8,487,000 and HK$3,869,000 as at 30 September
2016 and 2015 respectively which were past due at the
end of the reporting period.

Age of receivables that are past due but not
impaired

16. B H U mIEA (#8)

WERSERRER

BEEESEEFANASRE SR K
SEZREEARLEEZALEER
EMRILEZREFENEEERN
EREH-Ait  EERAREANE

HEZERRFEREE - FIELHEER
BifE e
REEE HEKWE IE'Z/JEHEFSTEEZ

Ty BN 7R E P R A A R MR

1 it B A] Y 2] Iiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂm °
i HRAEERABRE & ﬁﬁuﬁ/TT
— 7 FJ Y E 45 e BRI ZE B RE MR
f’EHj%?éﬁOEi%%—irf*tﬂ%%ﬂfﬁ%
FEW GRIR S SR AR B s 88 - Ot
18 HA A R O BT U 13 M 4 R A o

i HA {8 i #% iRk (8
AEECZESRBRURBEBEHBIER
E-XNERE-AFENA=THE
18 5 Bl 498,487 ,0007% 7t 1 3,869,000
BT RERREBANER -

CaRE I M B Z B RIRZ RS

As at 30 September

RARA=+H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FH T
Less than 1 month past due AR —1{E R 2,901 978
1 to 3 months past due BH—Z=={EA 3,533 1,085
Over 3 months past due &1 B R B = (A A 2,053 906
8,487 3,869

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. The management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there have not been a
significant change in credit risk and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over those balances.

LC Group Holdings Limited REi £ E=REFRAF

EEME Y SR EN R FIRES T
EEKEIEEZZHEXEE%’*E’]%’_*L%:)E
ER-ARNGEERBREBEEREH N
N AR R & ﬁM]ﬂE?%TLAiﬁEH&Z@
HEREERSEARBBESHRIELR
Eﬁéﬁ°$%llﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%éﬁﬁﬁ
EAE AR -
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

17. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS

FOR CONTRACT WORK

17. Bl BHREFEVNIER
L]

As at 30 September

BAA=+H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TFHET T T
Amounts due from customers BREERANIERE
for contract work
Contract costs incurred plus FrE A 2 & BN
recognised profits less B R m MR ERER
recognised losses 7,504 38,488
Less: Progress billings received A BN E N 2 E
and receivable (6,585) (38,040)
919 448

As at 30 September

BRhAA=+H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#ET FAT
Amounts due to customers ENERSNIERE
for contract work
Progress billings received 2R fE U 2 E R
and receivable 9,434 31,272
Less: Contract costs incurred plus B TEA Z A B
recognised profits less B iR MR B BREE
recognised losses (8,708) (29,062)
726 2,210

All gross amounts due from/to customers for contract
work are expected to be recovered/settled within one

year.

As at 30 September 2016 and 2015, retention held by
customers for contract work amounted to approximately
HK$2,189,000 and HK$1,210,000 respectively.

FTERK EREFPANIRERER
BEAE—FARE4EH -

RZEBE—RER_ZE—RFNA=+
H EFm®A ,\\']Ifffiﬁvrﬁﬁ’ﬂ%%/i\ﬁ
R4 A2,189,0007% 7T & 1,210,000/%
7_Eo
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/ 18. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 18. & B % IE & X fh FE Ik

RECEIVABLES ®IA

As at 30 September

BhAB=+H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T T
Deposits e 663 437
Prepayments FE{F 3B 756 356
Interest receivables JE Uk ﬂ,m 157 19
Retention receivables (Note 17) BB 17 5 (F5E17) 2,189 1,210
3,765 2,022
19. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 10. HERBITHE
Cash and bank balances comprise cash at banks and HWeE M TTEHBEEETR S EAE
cash on hand held by the Group. Bank balances earn BFEZEENIRS - RITEHLERE i
interests at floating rate based on daily bank deposit BRITERF RS F) X BEF 8
rates and is placed with creditworthy banks with no WERRTHEELOF L HEE E'Jz}
recent history of default. $R1T o
As at 30 September
BhA=+H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T8 FET
Cash and bank balance B e MIRTTHE &% 64,069 30,565
Bank deposits (Note) HRATFE R (MEE) 90,166 100,000
Cash and bank balance in the REVBRAREARNZ
consolidated statement R e RIBTTHE#
of financial position 154,235 130,565
Note: Mzt -
Deposits with bank carried interest at market rate which was RIBTZERRTHANR(REBE_Z—FNLA
approximately 0.95% to 0.96% (2015: 0.85%) per annum for the year =+ RHIFEEYHAETF0I5%E0.96% (—E—FH
ended 30 September 2016. F:0.85%)) 5B
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19. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)
Included in cash and bank balances in the consolidated
statement of financial position are mainly the following
amounts denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

19. B & & 8B 17 #& 8% ()

AR EHBRARNR S MIRTTHE
%IE@%TWM@E@“WZ%@%E

ANz BB FHEZ R

As at 30 September

BWhA=+H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T8 FAT
AUS BT 211 3,454
EUR BA TT 42 50
British Pound W 228 267
RMB AR 78 1,411
Canadian Dollars T 1 1
Japanese Yen = 98 82
SGD N ot 24 1,898
682 7,163

Note: fsE -

The amounts in RMB are not freely convertible into other currencies and
subject to the foreign exchange control.

20. TRADE PAYABLES

ARBFIETA Al s EmE®w =35

BEE ) o

20. RHEMBRIF

As at 30 September
BARA=+H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TFHET T
Trade payables g 5B EIE 6,629 15,067
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
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20. TRADE PAYABLES (Continued) 20. R HMEFHRIE ()
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the BOENRBERERZOH ZER D
invoice date are as follows: T

As at 30 September

®PhB=+H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#ET FAET
Current to 30 days BIER =30k 1,856 11,602
31 - 60 days 31—60X 812 336
61 — 90 days 61 —90K 483 1,771
Over 90 days 90K A E 3,478 1,358
6,629 15,067
The credit period on purchases of certain goods and BEATEMERB 2EERATEWD
services is within 7 to 90 days. KA
21. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER 21. Bt REMEMRIE
PAYABLES
As at 30 September
®HhB=+H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TFHET FATT
Other payables H b fE S 308 - 1,490
Accrued expenses e X 1,448 3,044
1,448 4,534
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22. SHARE CAPITAL

22. lg=&

Number of Nominal
Shares value
BB mE
HK$'000
FHET
Authorised: EE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 2R EEO.01)E T2 B
As at 19 January 2015 (note (a)) RZZE—RF—A+NAB (K@) 38,000,000 380
Increase under the reorganisation RIEE A mE i (M 3Eb))
(note (b)) 962,000,000 9,620
As at 30 September 2015, A _E—RFEARA=1+AH
1 October 2015 and —E-h1F+A—HR
30 September 2016 —Z—REAA=+H 1,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRAR :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 2R E1EO.01)E T2 B
As at 19 January 2015 (note (a)) RZZE—RAF— A+ 1B (KiF@) 1 -
Issue of shares under the RIFEA T RGD (FH5E2)
Reorganisation (note 2) 25 -
Issue of shares under the RIFE AR BT TR D
capitalisation issue (note (c)) (P 3E(c)) 374,999,974 3,750
Issue of shares under the share offer R{% %178 & e 17D
(note (d)) (Bt 5E(d)) 125,000,000 1,250
As at 30 September 2015, A _E—RFEARA=T+AH
1 October 2015 and —E-h1F+A—HR
30 September 2016 —Z—REAA=1+H 500,000,000 5,000
Notes: MsE -
(a) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the (a) VAN —RhE—At+HAHBERER
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liabilities ,zﬁ/\ E;-ﬁ ﬁ% MKk ABERSE BE&
on 19 January 2015, with an initial authorised share capital N Al 2 0EFE IR AR A380,00008 T
of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares (“Shares”) of %ss,ooo,oooﬂﬁ@Hﬁo.oﬁ%ﬁZWﬁ (H‘&L
HK$0.01 each and the Company allotted and issued one share. ?31) » MARN TR LT — IR D
(b) Pursuant to a resolution in writing passed by all shareholders on (b) BEZERER-_Z—RAFNA+=BZ
18 August 2015, the authorised share capital of the Company HBB 7 RFHE 0 F1E:8962,000,0000% A&
was increased from HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 Shares 5 AR A 2R E A 380,000 T (9
to HK$10,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 Shares by the /£38,000,0000% A% 17 ) 1% 11 Z=10,000,0007%
creation of additional 962,000,000 Shares. 7t (%9 £1,000,000,000/% % 15) °
(c) On 13 August 2015, the Directors authorised to capitalise () R-ZZ—HENA+=H EEEEEE
approximately HK$3,750,000 by applying that sum in paying up ${t%’]3 750,000/ 7C © FE AE R Z R E
in full at par 374,999,974 shares for allotment. REERESEE374,999,974M B - DA
B g o
(d) On 8 September 2015, 125,000,000 Shares were issued d RZZE-—BRFAANA R ETRRER
pursuant to the share offer upon the Listing. 7 3% & 3£ 17125,000,000 8% J& 17 ©
(e) The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as (e) TBRFEABERDNABTE R ZKE

declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

VERRARRRE L —REHESE —

EXRAE -RARRFBEEMST FTA
BREERSEZ -
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23.

112

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 14
August 2015 (“Share Option Scheme”), the Company
may grant share options to any directors, employees,
consultants, customers, suppliers of goods or services
to any member of the Group or any entity in which
the Group holds any equity interests who, in the
sole discretion of the board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the
Group so as to provide incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the success of the Group’s operation.

The maximum number of shares which may be allotted
and issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
total number of shares in issue from time to time. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as
at the date of listing of the shares unless the Company
obtains the approval of the shareholders in general
meeting for refreshment.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to (i)
each eligible participant must not exceed 1.0% of the
total number of shares in issue; and (i) a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent non-
executive director must not exceed 0.1% of the total
number of shares in issue and not exceed HK$5.0
million in aggregate value.

The exercise price must be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant;
(i) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

LC Group Holdings Limited REi £ E=REFRAF

23. ik #ERtE

RER-_Z-—AF/\ATOARAZ
AL S (TBRE S AR F
AREFE2ENBERAEAHEAR
SEZERRBREHNERNARHE
R AR B R A S A5 B 55 A L] i
MERNEENTIWNES &8 - BRH -
BP  EmSRBHEERRLBRE
VASE 18 5 7 75 52 (8] 2 S8 AR T #F 1 B R
RHRBRER -

AR 15 B8 I #E 51 8 R N 2 AR H A
BREAICREIMBEFITENEE
MWARTERBBREETEMA FRER
BITHNERSENEE  AXTEEBEAE
T B ITIRM B BM30% - RIZE
P HE 5t &) N AN X B AE A E B AR R At
2 AJ AL 1 RO BB B A O R 0 Bk 1 48
g IABEENKN ETMEME ET
P tn #EE10%  BRIFARBERK
RRE LERRYLETH -

PAERI121E B BB A E AT IR BSR4
(TR EITES B ARITEE) BT M 3%
TREETZRODEE  (HREEE
B2EARL  ATEBEE TR
MEBEEZ1.0% RifMAEAARETE
RSB IFNITESEL P BITE
BREETROEH Z01% R AET
BiE5.0E 8B °

TEEXEZEL ARG RIEHBH
TSR RERMAY W AE :
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23.

24,

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 13 August 2025 unless otherwise terminated
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

From 8 September 2015 (date of Listing) to 30
September 2016, no share option was granted by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme.

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in the
section headed “Directors’ Report” on pages 19 to 21.

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS OF

SUBSIDIARIES

(@) On 23 January 2015, Ms. CHEW acquired
13% equity interests of LCL Ltd. and LCL
Decoration respectively for a cash consideration
of approximately HK$111,000 and HK$276,000
respectively. Thereafter and before the Re-
organisation, LCL Ltd. and LCL Decoration were
wholly owned by Mr. LEONG and Ms. CHEW.

(b)

On 2 March 2015, the non-controlling shareholder
of LCL Deco disposed of all his 5,000 shares in

LCL Deco to Mr. LEONG at a consideration of
HK$500,000. The consideration for the transfer
was determined based on the unaudited net
assets value of such shares as at 31 January
2015. Upon completion of the transfer and before
the Re-organisation, LCL Deco became wholly-
owned by Mr. LEONG.

(c)

On 2 March 2015, the non-controlling shareholder
of LCL Architects disposed of his one share in

LCL Architects to Mr. LEONG at a consideration
of HK$2,000,000. The consideration for the
transfer was determined based on the unaudited
net assets value of such shares as at 31 January
2015. Upon completion of the transfer and before
the Re-organisation, LCL Architects was owned
as to approximately 66.66% and 33.33% by Mr.
LEONG and Ms. CHEW, respectively.

23.

24,

R B4 et @ (48)

RERRME MBI 2 I B10F - B R
ToRFENATZAHSBER B
ST R B2 AL ©

RZZBE-—HAFNANB(ETEH) =
—E-REAA=ZTH KRAFLE
AR B AU St B h () R A o

B ETE 2 FBERE
eRE | —EHE -

F19ZE21H[E =

HEAFMAEERSE

R-_E—RF—HA_-_+=H"
Bz 45 5 W EELCL Ltd. X LCL
Decoration®113% M # - & KRB
7 B #9 A111,000/%8 7T 276,000
BT HiE R EHRB - LCL
Ltd. % LCL Decorationfy & % £ &
BZztz2E%E -

(a)

ﬂ—:—ﬂi AZR &5
BREIERBREEERESER
7y 2 505,000 Bt & F R %
# o KRB A500,000/8 JT o B ER
BHERZERONR_Z—RHF
— AT —BNARKLEZREEF
BEETE - EETKE LRI EHR -
EEERARLERERS -

(b)

RZE—RAF=HA=H #HEAZR
R IEE R R E RN E
PEEMMH—BWRHEE TR
% 4 R & 52,000,000 7T °
EREREDENRZERMNVN_-Z
—AF—A=Z+ " HOREEZ
EEFEET HEETKERLE

(c)

S8R MAREEMAREE
B+ 5 Bl B 4166.66% &
33.33%
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

25.

114

DISPOSAL

LCL Deco

The Group disposed of LCL Deco during the year
ended 30 September 2016. On 31 August 2016, SBHL
and an independent third party entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which SBHL agreed
to transfer the entire issued share capital of LCL Deco
at the consideration of approximately HK$10,000 to the
independent third party. As the consideration for the
disposal of LCL Deco was based on its net asset value,
the disposal of LCL Deco did not result in a gain or loss
on the Group. Moreover, since LCL Deco was inactive,
the disposal of it will not affect the Group’s financial
performance and business.

25.

HeE

EEEx
AREEBPRBEE-_ZT—X~NFNLA=+
BEFFERHEERER KT — X
FNA=+—H SBHLE—ZBFLF

S oo =2

ZHEIMEEWHE  BILSBHLRA B %
KRB 8910, oooﬂémﬁ EeRENEF

E%ﬁh$%%%&ﬁi% PAIREE!
REERSERORENBEEEE
%ﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁﬁ%mniulﬁﬁﬁ
REERHESTMER - LI BARE
SEXEFLEE MEEERER
BTIEFERAEENTHRALER -

(i) Consideration received (i) BlKE
2016
HK$’000
T#ExT
Total consideration received in cash and VAR & MR & SEYIRER
cash equivalents ZER(E 10
(i) Analysis of asset and liability over which (i) BEREHREIEZEERA
control was lost BeoH
2016
HK$’000
FHET
Current asset mENEE
Cash & 19
Current liability mE&ER
Accrued expenses fERTFX (9)
Net assets disposed of BEHECEEFE 10
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

25. DISPOSAL (Continued)
(iii) Result on disposal of a subsidiary

25. HE (1)
(iii) HE—RMBATZHER

2016

HK$’000

THET

Consideration received BURE 10
Net assets disposed of BHEZEEFE (10)

(iv) Net cash outflow from disposal of a

(ivy HE—RMRELRZH &K H
#

subsidiary i
2016
HK$°000
TFHET
Total consideration received BUE Z B E 10
Less: Cash and cash equivalents balances B BEHEZHReRASE
disposal of Bk (19)
Net cash outflow from disposal of a subsidiary ~ HE—EHEAR 2
WML FEE (9)

Crystal Sky

The Group disposed of Crystal Sky which has become
inactive during the year ended 30 September 2015.
On 4 August 2015, SBHL and Mr. LEONG entered into
a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
SBHL agreed to transfer the entire issued share capital
of Crystal Sky at the consideration of approximately
HK$974,000 to Mr. LEONG. As the consideration for
the disposal of Crystal Sky was based on its net asset
value, the disposal of Crystal Sky did not result in a gain
or loss on the Group. Moreover, since Crystal Sky has
become inactive, the disposal of it will not affect the

Crystal Sky
AEBD H ECrystal Sky (HR#EHZE
—REFNA=+HLEFERFEILE
Z) RZE—RAFNAEHE " SBHL
H2EETVEEWHZE - B ILSBHLEA
B R (E #974,000/% T #Crystal Sky
WEREBITRAERETREE A
A ECrystal SkyfI KBTI IRIEHE
EFEETF - W ECrystal Skyll &
WA E&SE TEHE”EEE o f AN R
Crystal SkyE2 & 1%+ # H & Crystal
Skyii T EFEAREEOM KB RIRNE

Group’s financial performance and business. 1% e
() Consideration received (i) BlEKE
2015
HK$’000
THT
Total consideration received in cash AR & K38 & F B WU
and cash equivalents/Net cash inflow ZHERE/HE—MH
on disposal of a subsidiary EARZIRERAFRE 974
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

25. DISPOSAL (Continued) 25. HE ()
(ii) Analysis of asset and liabilities over (i) HEEHEARHEZEIERA
which control was lost BZoHh
2015
HK$’000
THET
Current asset MENEE
Amount due from LCL Interior JEUWLCL Interior Z IR 18,699
Current liabilities mERE
Accrued expenses EETRAX (4,604)
Income tax payable FEA ET SRR (13,121)
(17,725)
Net assets disposed of BHEZEEFE 974
(iii) Result on disposal of a subsidiary (i) HE—HMEBARZER
2015
HK$’000
F#ExT
Consideration received BURE 974
Net assets disposed of BEHEZEESFE (974)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2016

#HZE20164F9A30H L F &
26. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 26. HIE A TS
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 September 2016 RZE—RFEFNA=ZF+TBEHNBARZ
are as follows: FEIEMT
Proportion of
Issued and fully paid  ownership interest and
Class of share capital/ voting rights held Principal activities
Place of share/registered registered or by the Company and place of
Name of company incorporation capital held paid-up capital ~ Directly  Indirectly operation
SRRRGRARERR
FisRAER/ ERITRMRERS RAEZLH IERE
KEEE BT AR HEREF /ERMEMERS Ef M& REEHE
% %
SBHL BVI Ordinary 1 share 100 - Investment holding,
EEERHS TRk of USS1 each Hong Kong
1RERIETRG RERK BB
LCL Construction Hong Kong Ordinary 200,000 shares - 100 Provision of one-stop
B TR of HK$1 each integrated interior design
200,0008% solutions, Hong Kong
FRIETR R - Ea ERRE
BARE TR
LCL Design Hong Kong Ordinary 200,000 shares - 100 Provision of one-stop
A gl of HK$1 each integrated interior design
200,000% solutions, Hong Kong
FRIETRD R - Fa ERRE
BRNE BE
LCL Interior Hong Kong Ordinary 200,000 shares - 100 Provision of one-stop
B TR of HK$1 each integrated interior design
200,0008% solutions, Hong Kong
SRIETR R - Fa ERRE
BARER TR
LCL China Hong Kong Ordinary 10,000 shares - 100 Provision of one-stop
A TR of HK$1 each integrated interior design
10,0008 solutions, Hong Kong
sRIETRY R —uREa ERRE

BRIR BR
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26. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

118

(Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 September 2016
are as follows: (Continued)

Issued and fully paid

RZE—
EJRORNENE))

Proportion of
ownership interest and

RNEAMA=ZTHKE

. B EI T ()

NAEZ

Class of share capital/  voting rights held Principal activities
Place of share/registered registered or by the Company and place of
Name of company incorporation capital held paid-up capital  Directly Indirectly operation
SRRRERARERR
RERORH/ ERITRBERS RARZLH FERE
KEER Bl ARt HREF /ERMEMERS Ef M& REERE
% %
LCL Ltd. Hong Kong Ordinary 100 shares - 100 Provision of one-stop
&k LER of HKS1 each integrated interior design
1008 solutions, Hong Kong
BR1ETRG RE-URFE MRS
BARR BE
LCL Decoration Hong Kong Ordinary 100 shares - 100 Provision of one-stop
Eh LER of HK$1 each integrated interior design
1008 solutions, Hong Kong
iH /PJEHXV\ Tﬂ# JETZT = &EJF
BARR BE
LCL Architects Hong Kong Ordinary 3 shares - 100 Provision of one-stop
HERRER &k L&k of HK$1 each integrated interior design
SRERIBTRE solutions, Hong Kong

LC Group Holdings Limited REi £ E=REFRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 27. FLTFIZHEBERARR G F \

AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE 85

COMPANY

(a) Statement of Financial Position of the (a) FAFZHMBR AT
Company

As at 30 September

BPhB=+H
2016 2015
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
At FET FET
Non-current asset EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG A - -
Current assets mEEE
Prepayments and other TETRRIE R H A
receivables JE WS IR 246 23
Amounts due from subsidiaries  J& U ff B A 7 5 18 3,347 4,219
Cash and bank balances B & MIRTTE 111,085 110,527
114,678 114,769
Current liabilities g =K
Accrued expenses JEETF XX 991 533
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS BT B A B 5RIE 349 644
1,340 1,177
Net current assets MENEERE 113,338 113,592
Total assets WEER
less current liabilities mENAE 113,338 113,592
Net assets BERE 113,338 113,592
Equity #a
Share capital fi& 7 5,000 5,000
Reserves i 27(b) 108,338 108,592
Total equity attributable to F2XATFEEHA
owners of the Company EEBER 113,338 113,592
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of RZE—REF+_A+AEE
directors on 16 December 2016. g ERERETE -
On behalf of the board REEES
LEONG Hing Loong Rudoff CHEW Christina Mooi Chong
REE Aea
Director Director
EZ EZH
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27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b)

Reserves movement of the Company

27. ELFICHMBERARR E M
28 (&)
(b) FAFZHEESE

Share Accumulated

premium loss Total
BiRRE RHER ot
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER TER TER
As at 19 January 2015 RZZE-—AF—H+NH
(date of incorporation) (MK BH) - - -
Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ HEIREER 2 HEBEAH - (1,242) (1,242)
for the period
Issue of shares under the RIEE R (CBITMEITRG
capitalisation issue (Note (a)) (B 7% (a)) (3,750) - (3,750)
Issue of shares under the share offer 1R 1 % {7 % & M 2 17 i 17
(Note (b)) (PR (o)) 123,750 - 123,750
Transaction costs attributable to BIIRMEGER KA (HE(C)
issue of shares (Note (c)) (10,166) - (10,166)
As at 30 September 2015 and RZZE-—AFNA=FTHK
1 October 2015 —E-hE+A—H 109,834 (1,242) 108,592
Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ FREEB R 2EEBEHE
for the year - (254) (254)
As at 30 September 2016 RZSE—REANA=TH 109,834 (1,496) 108,338
Notes: B EE -
(a) Issue of shares under the capitalisation issue represented (a) RIBEABEITETROHIEERNE

120

the capitalisation of the sum by applying such sum
in paying up in full at par 374,999,974 shares of the
Company.

Issue of shares under share offer represented the
difference between the nominal amount of shares issued
by the Company and the gross proceeds on issue of
shares under the share offer for the Listing.

Transaction costs attributable to issue of shares
represented the capitalised listing expenses arised from
the share offer.

At 30 September 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was approximately HK$108,338,000 (2015:
HK$108,592,000).

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of losses of approximately HK$1,496,000 (2015:
approximately HK$1,242,000).

LC Group Holdings Limited REi £ E=REFRAF

HIE - AR R % AR E E
BB R374,999,974 A 1 A &

%o

(o) IREBBROHBEEBITRNHDEAREMR
BATRU D EE R AR B
ERTRNDZMEFRRLERZE
o

©  BEITROHEBERXIRAEMBNDE
EMELEZERELETER -

d RKRZF-—XFEALA=+H A#H
P ARNAIEREZ BELRED
£108,338,0008 7L (=& — A F -
108,592,000/ 7T) °

(e) RARBHBHREANERIE Z AR T
A ARG T A E518 491,496,000
BIL(ZT— R F : £1,242,000/
TT) °




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
/\\/T\ N 7}2?% i&% M—JL IIIE

For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

28. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 28. EEHEXKIE
The Group as lessee EEEESERBA \
The Group entered into commercial leases on certain AREBEGRET LM WAEFREE
land, office buildings and directors’ quarters. These FRIVTEEHE ZSEHETFY
leases have an average life of 2 years. None of the REME HEBM IR AESL -

leases include contingent rentals.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had total RWERR REERBETAIHE 2
future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable Z‘“ EHETHREN 2 X EHERE
operating lease falling due as follows: mr

As at 30 September

BRAB=+H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET FHET
Within one year fi A 2,038 3,869
In the second to fifth years inclusive —FEERF (BEEREME) - 2,054
2,038 5,923

29. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 20. EXHHEXH

The Group settled the dividend to shareholder of REBEE-_T— Eihﬂ_—f—ﬁiif

approximately HK$37,100,000 for the year ended 30 AEBERBHERR 2 HOKLE
September 2015 through the Group’s current account /DJUﬁHXﬁiﬁ'HX«%%’]SKTOO,OOO/’%TE °

with a shareholder.

Annual Report 2016 £ 121




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fre IS IR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE

30. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:
(a) Transactions with related parties

30. ERMBA XS

AEEREARBYHHTIATEAR
%5 :
(a) REMBATIZZS

For the year ended
30 September
BEANA=THLEE

2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET
Rental expense paid to Well TSN TFTREBERARZHESMAE
East Limited (Note (a)) (Pt 5% (@) 53 50
Rental expense paid to Pacific S FEABRAFIZEEMAX
East Limited (Note (b)) (P 3£ (o)) 1,459 1,450
Rental expense of the directors’ S FEHMNBER R A Z
quarters paid to World Pioneer EEE &M 4% (M3 ())
Asia Limited (Note (c)) 1,486 1,463
Design and/or decoration BEREMBER D AWERZ
service income received from  FREF KNS E # AR IS UL A
World Pioneer Asia Limited (Bt 5E(c)
(Note(c)) 350 -
Disposal of Crystal Sky to & Crystal SkyF 2 %4+
Mr. LEONG (Note 25) (B$5E25) - 974

Notes:

(@) Mr. LEONG and Ms. CHEW are the common directors and
shareholders of the Company and Well East Limited.

(b) Mr. LEONG is the common director and shareholder of the
Company and Pacific East Limited.

(c) Mr. LEONG and Ms. CHEW are the common directors
and shareholders of the Company and World Pioneer Asia
Limited.
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For the year ended 30 September 2016
#HE20165F9A30H L FE
30. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Key management personnel
compensation
Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Directors and

certain of the highest paid employees, as
disclosed in Notes 11 and 12 are as follows:

30. ERRABA X » ()
(b) FEEBARFHFH

FTEEBAEME BENTE
ERAETEFEE ZFKIE (0
PIEE11 R 12FT 38R ) E 5 a0 T ¢

For the year ended
30 September
BEARA=THLEEE

2016 2015

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

T#xT FATT

Fees we - -
Other emoluments, salaries Hafi e - He R EmEF

and other benefits 8,901 7,569

Pension scheme contributions Rk & 51 2|t 7% 109 99

9,010 7,668

31. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16
December 2016.

1. fHEREMB R

RGEUBRER-_ZT-—R"FT A
THREREESHERKETE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

XA7 JAL R
E]f 17 TE}L =
A summary of the published results and of the assets, AEERHBE-_ET—<XFHLA=THIAME
liabilities and equity of the Group for the five years ended 30 FEMDTIREENEE  BEULRESHT
September is as follows. ML o
Year ended 30 September
B#EAAZTALEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE—-RE —_T—hF —TNF —ET—=F —T—=F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$ 000
Results E§ - TET FAET FAT FAT FAT
Revenue N 116,021 159,527 113,786 183,429 270,293
Profit before income tax Bx AT 1S 1% A1 % A 28,279 25,053 28,107 28,948 48,718
Taxation 1A (4,098) (4,103) (4,756) (5,613) (8,622)
Profit and total FEHRA M
comprehensive income BERERA
for the year 24,181 20,950 23,351 23,335 40,096
Attributable to owners 2= N/NE|
of the Company B AES 24,181 21,255 23,200 23,216 39,530
As at 30 September
BhBA=+H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RE —T—1F T—WNF ZT—=F ZT—=F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$ 000
FiET FHET FAT FHET FAT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,878 1,775 2,830 4,029 5,391
Current assets B EE 169,195 162,434 81,207 92,618 104,245
Total assets BERAE 173,073 164,209 84,037 96,647 109,636
Liabilities afe
Current liabilities RBEE 16,460 31,777 33,539 66,510 48,834
Total liabilities BEEE 16,460 31,777 33,539 66,510 48,834
Total equity gaEg 156,613 132,432 50,498 30,137 60,802
Note: R

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each of the three AEBHEFHE T —F . T =FF T —UFN

years ended 30 September 2012, 2013 and 2014 and of the assets, liabilites A=+ HI=EAFEZFNGREEELNR =T —=F

and equity as at 30 September 2012, 2013 and 2014 have been extracted from —ZE—=FxK - T —NFEHLA=+HHNEE  BELE

the Company’s prospectus dated 21 August 2015. =WEDNHEAARARRBHA-ZT—AFNA=Z+—H
ZHBRER -

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated financial ~ El# B THEREBRGERBEREN—FH -
statements.
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